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12 12 12
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) ( 8.7 9.2 9.4 9.2 8.8 6.5
( ) 3,177 3,347 3,429 1,701 3,225 2,382
*2018 12 31

(b)

53/241



EDINETOOOO

OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

&%
ZHm =il

LT

L TR

SRR N

brda ] ] EFk ToF 1]

LaliT

BAN—TOREHEN (WA
FOEOMBNE (A
TOEOEENE (RRG)
FEER/R—HREEE (RS
EEER-F-HEREE ORlEdD)
B

~—

LEE

e

W

WisR

&3

&
i

et )
mETh &

L
3;_—-:_,_..:9-\15'& i

‘------h--ﬂ'

&
&
3
T .

asz ]

& LEERAEE
g |
&

EMEE
AEEEAR

3 F4
&
F)
samETE

nm HIVH

*‘!?' THE
& AR RS
&

Eﬂ EEE ]

Y

Lo BEGTRIR

I"

TN ER B TR B B E I R

54/241




EDINETOOOO

OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

........................ 97.9km
..................... 100km
..................... 16(
)
...... 16( )
..................... (2003 17 30 )
(2010 25 25 )
(2013 25 25 )
97.9km
2013 25
16 /
100km
HZM -

HZM

55/241



1993

EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

1978 12

1992 HHI
HHI
1994

1995 58km
1999

HHI

HHI

56/241



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

HHI

2003 17 30
2010 25 2013 25 25

RFID

@

57/241



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)

oOoOooodn
2020
28 27 2.99 43,000
1,096
2020 17 2020
2020
67 79
GDP 2020
GDP
2.7 1.6 1.5 3.0 2020
2020
4.21 60,000
2020 -
2020
2020

2021

58/241



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)

ooooooo
2020 12
- 2020
12 -
(
)
HZM 2020
2020 11 - -
( )
HzZM
HZM
HzZM

HHI

1,060

59/241



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

(ccTv)

2012

2015 26

2019 30
2020

60/241



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)

OooooOodd
2012
( /
)
2015 26 2019 12 31
km
7 0.6
8-19 0.9
20-39 1.2
40 1.8
N/A 2.1
2015 26
km 0.12
km
(D)
2 0.6
2-5(5 ) 0.9
5-10(10 ) 1.2
10-15(15 ) 20 1.8
15 40 2.1

2020
km 0.6
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- - 5 3.86 5 3.86
- - 6 4.09 6 4.09
40
0.17
4.5
4.5
2016 2017 2018 *2018 2019 2020
12 12 12
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) ( 2.9 3.4 3.7 4.2 4.2 3.0
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EBITDA EBITDA
(D 1,409 1,248  (445)  (316) 487 1,041 860  (450) (189) 221
735 627 (245)  (193) 189 532 418 (243)  (140) 35
2,144 1,875  (690)  (509) 676 1,573 1,278  (693) (329) 256
- 0 - @ @ - @ - (CAY) @
2,144 1,875  (690)  (511) 674 1,573 1,277  (693) (370) 214
-2™%  -32%  0.4%  -28%  -68%
2 9
- 2
2 50
2.5 - 545
3 4
@7 (36)
(€Y} an
(O] (150)
3L 407
643 621
-3%
2) 73
621 694
® ®)
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13%
(€))
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oOoOooodn
®
(D) (D)
2012 10 31 @ 120,000,000 | 3,081,690,283 12,000,000 | 160,200,000 | 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2015 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2015 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2015 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2015 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2015 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2015 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 29 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 10 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2016 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 28 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 31 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 30 -] 3,081,690,283 - -| 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
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OooooOodd
) )
2017 10 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2017 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 28 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 10 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2018 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 28 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 10 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2019 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 29 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 10 31 - | 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 11 30 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
2020 12 31 -1 3,081,690,283 - - 308,169,028.30 4,114,056,528
(1) 120,000,000 ( )
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)
(2020 12 31 )
) = )
85 3,057,308,898 99.21
5,930 24,381,385 0.79
6,015 3,081,690,283 100.00
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®)
(2020 12 31 )
)
)
V61110
3 2,213,449,666 71.83
A 2,213,449, 666 71.83
(¢))
2,213,449, 666 71.83
10) 18
@D 33| 305,087,338 9.90
33
@ 305,087,338 9.90
8 I
§ , 291,207,411 9.45
8 ' 291,207,411 9.45
22 207, :
(O)
2,809,744,415 91.18
(€))
( SIICHIC )
SIICHIC
( SIICHCL ) 100 SFO
15 SIICHCL  SIICHIC
(2) SIICHCL ( SIHC
) 100 SIHC SIICHCL SFO 15
3) D) ( GBL )
( ) 100 GBL SFO 15
) ( ) ( CTLIHK
) (
CTIHCL ) 100 CTIHCL CTLIHK SFO 15
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(Shenzhen Expressway Company Limited)(
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)
2016 10
(Taiping Investment Holdings Company Limited)
oCT
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(Taiping Financial Tower projects)
(41 )(1980 5 )
2020 12 2001
2001 ( )( )
( A000002)
( 2202) 2001 2002
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(JP)(46 )(1974 11 10 )
2011 2015 26
2018 11
( BEA ) 2004
2009 BEA 2009
BEA 2014 2019

(Towngas China Company Limited)

(China Overseas Land & Investment Limited)

(Chief Executive®s Council of Advisers on Innovation & Strategic Development of

the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region) (Hong Kong

Trade Development Council) (Financial Services Development Council)

(St. James’ Settlement)

(Hong Kong-Europe Business Council)

(Hongkong-Japan Business Co-operation Committee) (Asian Financial

Cooperation Association)

(Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)
(Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales)

(Hong Kong Academy of Finance) (Treasury Markets

Association) MBA
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(51 ) (1970 9 )
2018 11
28
1992
2006 EMBA
(Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) (Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants) (American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants)
(Hopson Development Holdings Limited)( 754)
(Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited)( 1047)
( ) (Termbray Industries International (Holdings) Limited)( 93)
AWVIG ( 2300)
(SBS, JP)(70 )(1950 12 )
2018 11

(Tony Kan & Co., Solicitors &
Notaries) 1982 (Supreme Court of Hong
Kong) (Supreme Court of
England and Wales) (Supreme Court of the Australian
Capital Territory) (Supreme Court of the

Republic of Singapore)

(Guangdong
Committee) 1985 2011 (Sha Tin District Council)
1999 (Regional Council)
1997

1988 (Heung Yee Kuk)
( (Town Planning Board) (Housing Authority) (Building
Committee) ) (Election Committee)
(Man Wah Holdings Limited)( 1999) 2013

2016 29 (Nameson Holdings Limited)(
1982) 2016 12
2017 12 29 DBG
(DBG Technology Co., Ltd.)( 300735)
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( )
(Midland Holdings Limited)( ( 1200) )
1994 10 2004
2014 2016 10
2016 10 2019 10 (Midland
1C&1 Limited)( ( 459) )
2019 18 2019 16
(Kimou Environmental Holding Limited)(
6805)
2020 12 31 SFO 352
(SFO 15
2015 2016 2017 2018 30 2018 12 31 2019 12
31 2020 12 31 (
) 17,639,000
20,226,000 15,359,000 10,193,000 2,863,000 8,279,000 8,073,000
2018 30 2018 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 12 31
( 485 ) MPF
30,000
2020 12 31
MPF 1,527,000
(2019 12 31 1,651,000 )
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1,503(23,868) 9(143) 1,555(24,693) 808(12,831)
370(5,876) 0(0) 479(7,607) 0(0)
1,873(29,743) 9(143) 2,034(32,300) 808(12,831)
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€))
2020 12 31

2019 2020
7,414 118 64,178 1,019
(5,748) 1) 13,378 212
16 - - 545,181 8,658
(361) (6) (575) ©)
(36,930) (587) (35,199) (559)
(1,306) 1) (17,266) 274)
700,552 11,125 295,090 4,686
663,621 10,538 864,787 13,733
10 (42,646) (677) (171,004) (2,716)
11 620,975 9,861 693,783 11,017
10,350 164 7,560 120
(2,127) (34) 64,359 1,022
629,198 9,991 765,702 12,159
612,026 9,719 688,661 10,936
8,949 142 5,122 81
620,975 9,861 693,783 11,017
620,249 9,849 760,580 12,078
8,949 142 5,122 81
629,198 9,991 765,702 12,159
13
0.1986 3.15 0.2235 3.55
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2020 12 31

2019 2020
16 4,858,483 77,153 4,673,688 74,218
17 22,600 359 31,000 492
18 1,546 24 2,111 34
19 311,224 4,942 322,792 5,126
5,193,853 82,478 5,029,591 79,870
820 13 545 9
68 1 1,208 19
19 - - 27,041 430
20 - - 801,503 12,728
21 - - 240,000 3,811
21 49,785 791 519,042 8,242
50,673 805 1,589,339 25,239
5,244,526 83,283 6,618,930 105,109
22 270,603 4,298 270,603 4,298
4,575,455 72,658 4,707,513 74,755
4,846,058 76,956 4,978,116 79,053
24,020 381 23,586 374
4,870,078 77,337 5,001,702 79,427
25 - - 754,002 11,974
24 80,668 1,281 76,025 1,207
80,668 1,281 830,027 13,181
12,811 203 10,255 163
25 280,969 4,462 324,347 5,151
- - 306,030 4,860
— - 146,569 2,327
293,780 4,665 787,201 12,501
374,448 5,946 1,617,228 25,682
5,244,526 83,283 6,618,930 105,109
49,785 791 519,042 8,242

* *
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©))
2020 12 31
( )
2019 270,603 2,337,689 107,589 5,273 (360,326) 2,478,406 4,839,234 30,233 4,869,467
- - - 10,350 - - 10,350 - 10,350
- - - - (2,127) - (2,127) - (2,127)
_ _ _ — - 612,026 612,026 8,949 620,975
- - - 10,350 (2,127) 612,026 620,249 8,949 629,198
- - 1,575 - - (1,575) - - -
14 - - - - - (613,425)  (613,425) - (613,425)
_ _ _ _ _ _ - (15,162) (15,162)
2019 12 31 270,603 2,337,689 109,164 15,623 (362,453) 2,475,432 4,846,058 24,020 4,870,078
- - - 7,560 - - 7,560 - 7,560
- - - - 64,359 - 64,359 - 64,359
- - - - - 688,661 688, 661 5,122 693,783
- - - 7,560 64,359 688,661 760,580 5,122 765,702
- - (574) - - 574 - - -
14 - - - - - (628,522)  (628,522) - (628,522)
_ _ _ _ _ _ — (5,556) (5,556)
2020 12 31 270,603 2,337,689 108,590 23,183 (298,094) 2,536,145 4,978,116 23,586 5,001,702
( )
2019 4,298 37,122 1,709 84 (5,722) 39,357 76,848 480 77,328
- - - 164 - - 164 - 164
- - - - 34 - 34 - D)
- - - - - 9,719 9,719 142 9,861
- - - 164 (34) 9,719 9,849 142 9,991
- - 25 - - 25) - - -
14 - - - - - (9,741) (9,741) - (9,741)
_ _ — —_ - - - (241) (241)
2019 12 31 4,298 37,122 1,734 248 (5,756) 39,310 76,956 381 77,337
- - - 120 - - 120 - 120
- - - - 1,022 - 1,022 - 1,022
- - - - - 10,936 10,936 81 11,017
- - - 120 1,022 10,936 12,078 81 12,159
_ _ ©) _ _ 9 _ _ _
14 _ . - - - (9,981) (9,981) - (9,981)
- - - - - - - (88) (88)
2020 12 31 4,298 37,122 1,725 368 (4,734) 40,274 79,053 374 79,427
2009 30
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®
2020 12 31

2019 2020
663,621 10,538 864,787 13,733
(3,120) (49) (1,100) an
(4,080) (65) (58,476) (929)
- - (1,503) 2%
1,280 20 15,791 251
- - (545,181) (8,658)
(144) @ - -
5,892 94 (13,378) (212)
361 6 575 9
(700,552) (11,125) (295,090) (4,686)
(36,742) (583) (33,575) (533)
(68) €)) (225) (©)
(142) 0 275 4
(1,685) @n (13,903) (221)
(38,637) (613) (47,428) (753)
- - (3,468) (55)
(38,637) (613) (50,896) (808)
- - (800,000) (12,704)
(309, 300) (4,912) (558, 750) (8,873)
- - (240, 000) (3,811)
- - (12,717) (202)
(616) (10) (1,140) (18)
- - 1,090,432 17,316
613,449 9,742 494,707 7,856
2,170 35 8,025 127
(3.750) (60) - -
144 2 - -
302,097 4,797 (19,443) (309)
546,221 8,674 3,190,168 50,660
(265,252) (4,212)  (2,318,054) (36,811)
(1,123) (18) (15,575) (248)
(624,064) (9,910) (317,710) (5,045)
(15,162) (241) (5.556) (88)
(359, 380) (5,707) 533,273 8,468
(95,920) (1,523) 462,934 7,351
140,087 2,225 49,785 791
5,618 89 6,323 100
49,785 791 519,042 8,242
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2020 12 31 4,673,688,000 2019 4,858,483,000

2020 12 31 295,090,000 2019

700,552,000
625,596,000 2019 624,304,000
2019
66,835,000 2019 26,393,000
)

2020 12 31 4,673,688,000 2019 4,858,483,000

2020 12 31 295,090,000 2019

700,552,000
256,694,000 2019 236,207,000
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2019

EBITDA

1,408,888 1,248,307 (445,024) (315,899) 487,384
735,380 626,703 (245,029) (192,748) 188,926

2,144,268 1,875,010 (690, 053) (508, 647) 676,310

- 38 - (1,924) (1,886)

2,144,268 1,875,048 (690, 053) (510,571) 674,424

2,156

1,924

3,478
(37,291)
(1,306)
(776)

(21,634)

620,975
(8,949)

612,026

2020

EBITDA

1,040,756 859,495 (449,886) (188,433) 221,176
531,899 418,468 (243,289) (140,305) 34,874

1,572,655 1,277,963 (693,175) (328,738) 256,050

- (554) - (41,482) (42,036)

1,572,655 1,277,409 (693,175) (370,220) 214,014

8,939
1,503

49,537
545,181
4,199
(35,774)
(17,266)
(149,683)

73,133

693,783
(5,122)

688,661

)
59,755,000 2019 15,742,000

13,378,000 2019 5,892,000
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OoOoOoOoOodno
/
CODM

2019 2020

674,424 214,014

C ) (15,742) 59,755

41,870 21,321

700,552 295,090
( )
2019 4,067 1,137 55 5,259 (5,259) 4,080 4,080
2020 8,979 2,186 114 11,279 (11,279) 59,979 59,979

FVTOCI 1,782,000 2019
1,546,000

CODM
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OooooOodd
7.
2019 2020
2,156 8,939
1,924 49,537
- 1,503
- 1,027
FVTOCI 3,120 1,100
214 2,072
7,414 64,178
COVID-19 1,027,000 1,027,000
8.
2019 2020
C ) (5,892) 13,378
144 -
(5,748) 13,378
9.
2019 2020
16 792,358 388,039
(91,806) (92,949)
(52,499) (55,784)
52,499 55,784
700,552 295,090
10.
2019 2020
EIT 33,016 176,487
24 9,630 (5,483)
42,646 171,004
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oOoOooodn

2020 12 31 EIT
26,340,000 2019 32,704,000
2019 2020
663,621 864,787
25

2019 25 165,905 216,197
(503) (469)
(611) (5,532)

11,123 13,260
(175,138) (73,773)

41,870 21,321

42,646 171,004

11.

2019 2020

1,542 1,668

12 8,279 8,037

15,315 17,530

23,594 25,567

361 575

1,306 17,266

1,648 1,791
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Ogoooood
12.
2019
( )
2019 2020
" a - - - - - - - - - -
b 65 - - - 65 - - - - -
308 - - - 308 313 - - - 313
c 243 - - - 243 195 - - - 195
d - - - - - 118 - - - 118
176 1,102 933 287 2,498 179 1,010 886 255 2,330
176 964 633 270 2,043 179 853 722 233 1,987
176 959 633 270 2,038 179 858 722 233 1,992
370 - - - 370 376 - - - 376
370 - - - 370 376 - - - 376
344 - - - 344 350 - - - 350
2,228 3,025 2,199 827 8,279 2,265 2,721 2,330 721 8,037
*
@
*
() 2018 27 2019 19
*
© 2019 19 2020 12
*
@ 2020 12
*
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2019
2019
2019 2020
2,113 2,265
254 274
32 32
2,399 2,571
2019 2020
1,000,001 1,500,000 2 2
2019 2020 12 31
13.
2019 2020
612,026 688,661
2019 2020
3,081,690,283 3,081,690,283
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14.
2019 2020
2019 12 31
0.098 10.971394 305,852
2019 12 31
0.101 11.320989 2019
2018 12 31
0.099 11.615472 307,573 320,807
2020 12 31
0.10 11.787600 307,715
613,425 628,522
2019 2020
2020 12 31
0.091 10.936835 2019
2019 12 31
0.101 11.320989 311,251 280,434
2020 12 31 0.091 10.936835
15.
MPF
30,000
12
2020 12 31 2020 12 31
MPF 1,527,000 2019

1,651,000
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ooooooo
16.

2019 2020

2,024,539 2,022,289

2,520,218 2,520,218

1,582,767 1,473,604
(32,611) (13,044)
(483,895) (539,679)
(1,665,141) (1,758,090)

3,945,877 3,705,298

2,449,500 2,449,500
(2,020,789) (2,020,789)

483,895 539,679

912,606 968,390

4,858,483 4,673,688

2019 2020 12 31

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020

( ( 50 50

4,899,000,0004,899,000,000
( ( 50 50 50 50
10,000,000 10,000,000

X 15 15
( ( 37.5 ( 37.5 (
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)

10 48 10 45

2008 30

)

1,680,000,000
294,000,000

6,715,000,000
1,175,500,000
2,351,000,000
25

5,600,000,000
980,000,000
1,960,000,000
25

2019 2020 12 31

2003
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1997

702,000,000

35
17 30
35
2010
35
2013

oOoOooodn

30

10 50

471,000,000

588,000,000

25

25

4,899,000,000



)

2019 2020

2019 12 31

532,534,000
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12 31
37.5
15
545,181,000 2020 12 31
1,090,432,000
2020

12,717,000

22.5
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Ooooooog
2019 2020 12 31
( )
2019 2020
565,170 366,782 501,494 360,173 53
6,540,804 11,388,116 6,002,325 11,005,698
65,769
7,105,974 11,754,898 6,503,819 11,365,871 65,822
- 433,605 94,197 10,060 990,006 185,506 34,144
50,000
4,343,205
98,173 42,290 854,480 90,574 42,965 110,489
581,778 136,487 864,540 1,080,580 228,471 4,487,838
(416,701)  (122,269) (453,555)  (130,074)
. (3.236,989) (5,253,621) (2,967,969) (4,917,121)
(1,825,211) (1,936,779)
(829,932) (2.,419,765)
(330,463)  (16,134)
(169,978)  (309,380) (139,839)  (339,533) (3,979)
(3,823,668) (7,510,481)  (829,932) (3,891,826) (7,339,641) (2,423,744)
- (718,356)  (28,500) (688,209)  (84,000)
. (4,914) (7,115) (3,149) (6,328)
(180,273)
(2,062,000)
(715,384)  (285,083)  (29,637) (648,299)  (370,819)  (75,083)
(1,438,654)  (320,698)  (29,637) (1,339,657)  (461,147) (2,317,356)
() 2,425,430 4,060,206 4,971 2,352,916 3,793,554  (187,440)
45% 50% 37.5% 45% 50% 15%
« ) 1,091,444 2,030,103 1,864 3,123,411 1,058,812 1,896,777 (28,116) 2,927,473
(14,306)  (14,306)
(32,611) (32,611)  (13,044) (13,044)
625 625
912,606 912,606 968,390 968,390
« ) 1,058,833 2,942,709 1,864 4,003,406 1,046,393 2,865,167 (42,422) 3,869,138
819,638 35,439 855,077 727,454 34,674 762,128
19 42,422 42,422
1,878,471 2,978,148 1,864 4,858,483 1,773,847 2,899,841 4,673,688
36 57 0 27 44 0
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ooooooo
( )
2019 2020
(
) 3,130,862 1,470,760 2,312,792 1,063,798
198,655 7,255 10,968 7,255
3,329,517 1,478,015 2,323,760 1,071,053
(198,655) (7,255) (10,968) (7,255)
179,687 44,877 146 288,532 57,158 5,999
(19,230) (14,621) (36,854) (7,806)
(387,716)  (190,504) (438,904)  (209,615)
(103,760) (57,106) (44) (96,500) (66,598) (9,948)
(786,648)  (488,513) (794,894)  (485,048)
(178,540)  (254,670) (5,132) (128,134)  (226,035)  (254,230)
« ) (440,939)  (110,857) (277,164) (50,824) 65,769
« ) 1,393,716 399,366 (5,030) 828,874 75,030 (192,410)
45 50 37.5 45 50 37.5 /15
) 627,172 199,683 (1,886) 824,969 372,993 37,515 (42,036) 368,472
(32,611) (32,611) 19,567 19,567
594,561 199,683 (1,886) 792,358 392,560 37,515 (42,036) 388,039
(
) 613,449 613,449 385,403 109,304 494,707
() 3,990,000 179,022,000 2019 11
4,124,000,000 2019 12 2019 12 31
2020 2,643,000
32,611,000 2019 12 31
2020 12 31 19,567,000
) 132,789,000 2019
34,982,000
17.
FVTOCI
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Ooooodo
18.
2019 1,610 4,679 6,289
616 616
(337) (19) (356)
2019 12 31 1,273 5,276 6,549
758 382 1,140
2020 12 31 2,031 5,658 7,689
2019 464 4,534 4,998
255 106 361
(337) (19) (356)
2019 12 31 382 4,621 5,003
356 219 575
2020 12 31 738 4,840 5,578
2019 12 31 891 655 1,546
2020 12 31 1,293 818 2,111
19.
2020 12 31
322,792,000 2019 311,224,000
2019 2022 2023
27,041,000 2019 2021
12
322,792,000
27,041,000
27
20.
2020 12 31 2021 13 30
3.81
2020 12 31
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oOoOooodn
21.
2020 12 31 0.01 2.9 2019
0.01 4.57
2020 12 31 3.95 2019
2019 2020
2,916 754,902
46,865 4,131
4 9
49,785 759,042
27
22.
0.1
2019 2019 2020 12 31 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
2019 2019 2020 12 31 3,081,690,283 308,169 270,603
2013 10 22
10
)
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2007 25
2007 25 15
HHI
23.
2019 2020
1,445,326 1,341,358
1,693,379 1,685,291
3,138,705 3,026,649
400 332
915
302,910 875,412
1,533 492,447
304,843 1,369,106
3,443,548 4,395,755
270,603 270,603
3,002,569 2,795,374
3,273,172 3,065,977
3,371 2,878
306,030
167,005 1,020,870
170,376 1,329,778
3,443,548 4,395,755
1,533 492,447
* *
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OoOoOoOoOodno
22
2020 12 31
3,165,974,000 2019 3,373,169,000 828,285,000
2019 1,035,480,000 2,337,689,000 2019 2,337,689,000

( )

2019 2,337,689 (370,600) 442,992 2,410,081

- - 1,205,913 1,205,913

14 - - (613,425) (613,425)

2019 12 31 2,337,689 (370,600) 1,035,480 3,002,569

_ - 421,327 421,327

14 - - (628,522) (628,522)

2020 12 31 2,337,689 (370,600) 828,285 2,795,374
2009 30

24.
FVTOCI

2019 1,042 68,846 - 69,888

- 41,870 464 42,334

1,150 - - 1,150

- (32,704) - (32,704)

2019 12 31 2,192 78,012 464 80,668

( ) - 21,321 (464) 20,857

840 - - 840

- (26,340) - (26,340)

2020 12 31 3,032 72,993 - 76,025
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OooooOodd
25.
2019 2020
280,969 1,078,349
280,969 1,078,349
2019 2020 12 31
2019 2020
280,969 1,078,349
2019 2020
280,969 324,347
- 754,002
280,969 1,078,349
(280,969) (324,347)
- 754,002
2020 12 31 HIBOR
0.98 HIBOR 2019  HIBOR 1.05 HIBOR 1.2
26.
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ooooOoog
27.
@
2019 2020
361,077 1,110,083
FVTOCI 22,600 31,000
FVTPL - 801,503
383,677 1,942,586
290,622 1,391,071
)
)
2019 2020 2019 2020
4 9 - .
46,865 4,131 285,054 1,388,508
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oOoOooodn
2020 12
31
2020 12 31
69,219,000 2019 11,909,000
2020 12 31
39,600,000 2019 42,392,000
25 21
21
100

2020 12 31

100 2019
100

5,593,000 2019 2,331,000
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0oooood
2020 12 31
100 2019 100
25,500,000 2019 29,383,000
()
2020 12 31
ECL
12
ECL
2019 12 31
12 ECL 311,224
A+ 12 ECL 49,785
2020 12 31
12 ECL 349,833
A+ 12 ECL 519,042
AA+ 12 ECL 240,000
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HIBOR 0.98 HIBOR
2019 12 31
- 9,653 - 9,653 9,653
4.24 281,521 - 281,521 280,969
291,174 - 291,174 290,622
2020 12 31
- 6,692 - 6,692 6,692
- 306,030 - 306,030 306,030
1.23 333,913 774,037 1,107,950 1,078,349
646,635 774,037 1,420,672 1,391,071
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©

2019 2020

FVTOCI

22,600,000 31,000,000

(EV/EBITDA)

801,503,000

814,000
2019 347,000
1,482,000 2019 668,000
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oooooog
28.
2019 2020 12 31
2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
BV 97.5 97.5 97.5 97.5
20,000 20,000
97.5 97.5
97.5 97.5
100 100
100 100
SIH 100 100 100 100
97.5 97.5 97.5 97.5
315,050,000 858,800,000
SIH
29.
2019 2020 12 31
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OooooOodd
30.
2019 - - - -
280,969 (639,226) (1,123) (359, 380)
- 628,587 - 628,587
- - 1,280 1,280
- 10,639 - 10,639
2019 12 31 280,969 - 157 281,126
872,114 (323,266) (15,575) 533,273
- 634,078 - 634,078
- - 15,791 15,791
(74,734) (4,782) (20) (79,536)
2020 12 31 1,078,349 306,030 353 1,384,732
3,190,168,000 2019
546,221,000 2,318,054,000 2019 265,252,000
31.
2020 12 31
49,537,000 2019 1,924,000
12
32.
2020 12 31 5,956,394, 000 2019  1,256,732,000
33.
87 140 2021 25
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For e pear et B Decembes 2120

2019 2020

NOES RMEB O RMB 00

Other income 7 7414 64,178
Other gain and loss ] {5,748) 13,378
Gain on partial disposal of a joint venture 16 - 545,181

Depreciation 1361 (575)

General and administrative expenses {36,930) (35,199)

Finance costs (1,306) (17,266}
Share of results of joint ventures L] 700,552 295,090
Profit before 1ax B63,621 B4, 787

Income tax expense 10 (42, 6:40) 71,004}
Profit for the year 11 620,975 693,783

Other comprohensive incomo
Itesrm that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair value gain on investment in equily instrument at
fair value through other comprehensive incomse,
nel of tax 10,350 7,560
I that may be reclassified subsequently o profil or loss:
Exchanpge (loss) pain arising on translation of

foreign operations (2,127 64,359
Total comprehensive income for the year 620198 765,702
Praofit for the year attributable 1o
Owners of the Company 612,026 GH88, 661
Mon-controlling interests 8,949 5,122
B20,975 693,783
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 620,249 760,580
MNon-controlling interasts 8,940 5,122
629,198 765,702
RMB cents RME cenis
Earnings per share 13
Basic 19,86 2235

Asmual Repart 2NN BT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 11 Decombers 2120

2009 el
NOTES RMB () BB O
ASSETS
Mon-current Assels
Interests in joint ventures 16 4 858 483 4,673,680
Equity instrument al fair value through
other comprehensive income 17 22,600 31,000
Property and equipment 18 1,546 amnm
Amount due from a joint venture 19 311,224 322,792
5,193,853 5,029,591
Current Assels
Deposits and prepayments B0 545
Interest and other receivables [ 1,208
Amount due from a joint venture 19 - 27,041
Struciured deposit 20 = BO1,503
Time deposit with ariginal maturity aver theee months 3| - 240,000
Bank balances and cash 21 49,785 519,042
50,673 1,589,339
Total Asscts 3,244,526 bh1E,930
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 22 270,603 270,603
Share premium and reserves 4,575 455 4,707,513
Eqquity attributabdle 10 owners of the Company 4,846,058 4,978,116
Mon-controlling interests 24,020 23,586
Total Eguity 4,870,078 5,001,702
Meon-current Liabilities
Bank loans 25 - 754,002
Deferred tax liabilities 24 80,668 76,025
B0, 668 830,027
Current Liabilities
FPayables and accruals 12,811 10,255
Bank loans 25 280,969 324,347
Dividend pavables - A0, 030
Tax payables - 146,569
293,780 7H7.2M
Total Liabilities 374,448 1,617,228
Total Equity and Liahilities 5.244,526 6, h1H,930
Cash and cash equivalents 49,785 519,042
Tianliang ZHANG® Ji Liue
[rechor Direcior

* fovw idenification punpose ol

Be Shrniten livestiment Huhfings Rey Aoea Dvvelagrsent Cosspany Linm sl
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Fiur e pear pafed 11 Decembar 20020

Attribatable Jo owaers of the Company
Feoytle’s
Repeblic
of Chisg
RO havisteent Mao-
St Share  sttafory  povalation  Traesllien Refwined cotrulfing
EMATO0  RMEDI0  RMEDOD  RMHTO0  RMED0  EAETO0  RMETO0  RMETOD  RMEToD
A at 1 Lanaary 2019 W00 DIETBER 100589 5271 Op0EMN) L4TRd06  4RIIM B 48848
Fak walon gu on mrvestment in equity
insirument it fir value thoough arher
comprehensive income, net of ty - - - M350 - - .50 - 10,350
Enchange hoss on rassliton of
foreign eperations - - - - o127 - 210 - i
Poofit for the year - - - - - hl1fch BILOOG MY BlATE
Tetal neywehensiye income for the year - - - 10150 Qun MLk RN A RMI9A
Transer hetween respros - - 1575 - - 1575 - - -
Chrwaeberds recogrised as distribution
tharivng the year |Nole 14| - - - - - IBIAN  RENAYS) E 1 P
Dividends puiid 4o non-contmiing
Imietest, - - - - - - - 15,188 5060
A3 31 11 Diécencher 2009 sl 113Te8 1AM 1561 (e245N  LATAND MBS o 4Tt
Fiait valer gain on invesiment in equiy
maimunen] ai Gir value throush other
compiehermive income. et of Ly - - - 7560 - - 1500 . 2560
Exchange gain on bunsladion of
feHgn operations - - - - 159 - Hin = 158
Prodit b the year - - - - - hELES)  BEAGHI M1
Tatal comprehenshe income for the year - - - T.560 B30 BB TELSED 5112 e TR
Tramsder btween reseries - - 5 - - N - - -
Dviderds recognised as distribution
durig the year (Note 14 - - - - - RIS RIRSIN - K5I
Dvidends puaid 1o non-costmiing
et i i - = = = - 15,5501 3,358

A a1 31 Duecember T ITs3  L13T68 104,590 HOE M LG NTRDE 1158 5001701

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in Renminki
(“RMBT) (the presentation currency of the Group), the equity transactions and accumulated earnings
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (*“HKD®) are translated at the exchange rates at the wransaction dates,
Before the change in functional currency of the Company from HKD 1o RMB during the year ended 30 june
2009, the exchange differences recognised in wanslation reserve represented the difference between the
equity transactions and accumulated earnings translated at the exchange rates at the transaction dates and
the assets and liabilities translated at the closing rates at the end of each reporting period. Subsequent to the
change in functional currency of the Company, the exchange differences recognised in translation reserve
represented translation of its foreign operations,
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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20049 2020
RAB (N RA B O
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 663,621 864,787
Adjustments for;
Dividend income from equity instrument at fair value through
ather comprehensive income £3,120) (1,101
Interest income [4,0800 |58,476)
Invesiment income from structured deposit (1,503)
Interest expense 1,260 15,791
Gain on partial disposal of a joint venture - (545,1871)
Gain on disposal of property and equipment {144} -
Met exchange loss (gain) 5,802 (13,378)
Depreciation of property and equipment 361 575
Share of profit of foint ventures (700,552} (295,090)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (36,742) (33,575)
Increase in interest and other receivalles [[1:] (225)
{Increase) decrease in depaosits and prepayments {142} 75
Decrease in payables and accruals 11,685) {13,903)
Cash used in operating activities i38,637) (47 420
Income tax paild - (3, 4068)
NET CASH LISED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (38,637) {50, 896)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Placement of structured deposit - (B, 04040
Advance to a joint veniure {309,300} (558,750)
Placemoent of time deposit with original maturity over three months - (240,000)
Expenses arising from partial disposal of a joint venture - (12,717}
Purchases of property and cquipment (G115 (1,140
Procesds on partial disposal of a joint venture and assignment of
shareholder's loans and interests thereon - 1,090,432
Dividends received inet of PRC withholding tax) B13,449 494,707
Triterest received 2,170 8,025
Capital injection to a joint venture (3,7 500 -
!’ru:cﬁ‘is an dispuiI_I' of property and equipment 144 -
MNET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTIMG ACTIVITIES 102 0407 (19, 443)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Mew bank loans raised 546,221 3,190,168
Bank loans repaid {265,252) {2, 318,054)
Interest paid {1,122} {15,575)
Dividends paid to:
- owners of the Company (624,064) (317,710
- l‘lnn-:'ul‘-ltrlltinmr:fcm af a subsidiary {15,162} (5,350)
MET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES {359,380} 533,273
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (95,9200 462,914
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD 140,067 49,785
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 5618 6,323
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD 459,785 519,042

Mole:  Cash and cash equivalents comptise cash ot banks and cash on hand, and deposits witls banks subsjeeted 1o mabgnificant risk of
change in value, and with o matarity of three monkhs or less (rom date of placing,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Four e year et 21 Decemibes 21020

1. General Information

Shenzben Investmen! Holdings Bay Area Development Company Limited (the *Company®) is an
exempted company with limited liabality incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are Hsted
on The Stack Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the *Stock Exchange”), The Company's immediate
holding company is Shenzhen Investment Intermational Capital Holdings Infrastructure Co., L, G551
2 O A O T R AR L F), o company incorporated in the British Virgin lslands with limited
Ieabsility, The Company’s wltimate holding company is Shenzhen Investment Holdings Ce,, Lid (5350
T R R S0, a company established in the PRC with limited lability,

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section of carporate information in the annual report.

The Company 15 an investment holding company, Details of the prncipal activities of the principal
sulrsidiaries and the joint ventures are set oul in poles 28 and 16 respectively,

The Company's functional currency and presentation currency ane RME.

2. Significant Events in the Current Year

(i1 Pursuant to the *Notice from the Ministry of Transpar an Waiver of Tolls an Toll Roads During
the Prevention and Contral of Epidemic Caused by the Novel Coronavirus Pneumonia™ (C2 3R
Wi 50 O % T A A P T O S NS S 7 WS D) issued by the Ministry of
Transport of the PRC on 15 February 2020 ithe “Notice”], with the approval of the State Council,
the Ministry of Transport determined that talls of toll roads would be waived nationwide for all
vihicles legally travelling through the toll roads during the period of the prevention and control
of the epidemic caused by the novel coronavires preumonia. The toll-free period commenced
fram (00 a.m. on 17 Febroary 2020 6ll the end of the prevention and contral of the epidemic,
which applied to vehicles on non-networked 1oll expressways and common highways according
1o the time of passing through the toll lane of the woll station, and applied (o vehicles on
networked toll cxpressways according to the time of leaving the exit of the toll lane (the “Toll-free
Pericd®). Pursuant lo the “Motice from the Ministry of Transport on Resumption of Toll fecs
Collection on Toll Roads® (52 5505 R0RE 5 0 8 B 10 0 26 U &) issued by the Ministry of
Transport of the PRC on 28 April 2020, with the approval of the State Council, saved for the
designated vehicles which were subject to the statutory free passage policy prior 1o the
implementation of the Notice for which the woll-iree policy would continuee to be applicd, 1ol
roads nationwide (including toll bridges and wnnels) resumed ol fees collection for all vehicles
legally travelling through the toll roads from 000 on G May 2020,

According to the above, the Nolice was applicable to Guangehou-Shenzhen Superhighway (*GS
Superhighway”) and Guangzhouw-Zhohai West Superhighway ("GZ West Superhighway”) operated
by the Group’s joint ventunes, All vehicles legally travelling through those expressways during the
Toll-free Period were waived from tolls, Since (ol income constitutes the primary source ol
revenue of the Group's joint ventures, the implementation of the Notice resulted in a negative
impact on the business performance of the Group during the current year.

i) On 10 September 2000, the Group entered inte an agreement 1o dispose of 22.5% equily interest
of Guangzhou Zhentong Development Company Limited (550 5880 8 B8 358 280 (*Nintang
%), 1ogether with the transfer of its rights in the corresponding portion of its shareholders’ loans
advanced to Xintang |V and the outstanding interests accrued therean, through a public tender
process in the PRC (the "Partial Disposal®). The Group holds 15% equity interest of Xintang |V
after the completion of the Partial Disposal. Details of the Partial Disposal are-set oul in note 16,
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3. Application of Amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs"”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to References o the Conceptual
Framwework in IFES Standards and the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the Intermational
Accounting Standards Board (*IAS8*) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginoing on or after 1 Janwary 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

Ahatements;
Amendments to 1AS 1 Definition of Materal
andl 1AS £
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Beform

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

The application of the Amendmenis to References 1o the Conceptual Framewaork in IFRS Standards and
the amendments to IFRSs in the curment vear had no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and perfermance for the current and prior years andéor on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

MNew and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet efiective
The Group has not early applied the jollowing new and amendments to IFRSs that have been issued
bt are ot vl effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments’
Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID:1 9-Related Rent Concessions!
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framowork’
Amendments ta IFRS 9, Interest Rale Benchmark Beform - Phase 2°
I1AS 349, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
anel IFRS 16
Amendments o IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
and 1AS 28 its Assoiate o Joint Venture!'
Amendments to 1AS 1 Classification aof Liabilithes as Curment or Mon-current’
Amendments to 1AS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies!
IFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendmonts to IAS 8 Dretinition of Accounting Estimates'
Amendments to 1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use!
Amendments to 1AS 37 Onerous Contracts = Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’
Amendmaents to IFRS Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 200 8-2020°
Standards

Effective for annual periods bisginning an or aftes 1 Jansiary 2027,
Effective lor annual periods beginning on or after 1 Jaiary 2022,

N Effective lor annual periods beginring on or alier & date to be determined.
Efiective lor apnual periods beginming on or aller 1 juse 2020,

Efiective for annual periods beginming on or afler 1 Jlamiary 2021,
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3. Application of Amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") (continued)

MNew and amendments to IFRSs in issue but nol yet effective icontinued)

In ackdition to the above new and amendmients to IFRSs, a rovised Conceplual Framework for Financial
Reparting was issued in 2019, Its consequential amendments, the Amendments 1o References o the
Conceptual Framewark in IFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1
January 2021.

The Directors anticipate that the application af all aew and amendments to IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

4.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs isswed by the
IASB. For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material i such information is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consalidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Lirmited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
cerain financial instruments that are measured at fair valees at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the acoounting policies sel oul below,

Historical costis generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and sorvices,

Fair value is the price that would be received o sell an asset of paid to transier a liability in an
orderly transaction between markel participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation echnigque. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or & liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
assel or llability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement andfor disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,

AFmial Kepmart 2OEN0 093

167/241



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fowr yrar prwden] 11 Phcember MNP

4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies continued)

4.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements (continucd)
In addition, for imancial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inpuis to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
Tolfows:

& Level 1 iaputs are quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2 inputs are inputs, ather than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or Lability, either directly or indirectly; and

*  Level 1anputs are unobservablbe inpats for the asset or labality,

4.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

*  has power over the invesiee;
= s exposed, or has rights, io variable returns from lis invalvement with the investes; and
= has the ability (o use its power to affect its relurns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or mare of the three elements of control listed abave.,

Consalidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses conirol of the subsidiary, Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiany acquired or disposed of during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of
pmfi1 or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Growp gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed 10 the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed 1o the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in

the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance,

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting paolicies.
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.2 Significant accounling policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
All intragroup assets and liabilities, equily, income, expenses and cash flows relating o
transacticons between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consalidation,

Mos-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's equity therein,
which represent present ownership interests entitling their holders (o a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevan subsidiaries upon liguidation,

Interests in joint venfures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to tht net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control s the
contractually agreed sharing of contral of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing coniral,

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consol idated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. The financial statemoents of joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumsiances. Appropriaie
adjustments have been made 1o conform the joint venture’s accounting policies o those of the
Group, Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter o recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture, Changes
in net assets of the joint venture other than pm1'I1 ar loss and other rnmpmhc-nslwu IFOME Are i
asccounted for unless such changes resulted in changes In ownership inlerest held by the Group.
When the Group's share of losses of joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that joim
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venturel, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses,
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Interests in joint veniures (continued)

Thie Growp assesses whether there s an objective evidince that the intereel inoa joint venture may
be impaired, When any objective evidenoe exists, the entire carrying amount af the investment
(including goadwill} is tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 *lmpairment of Asseis™ as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount thigher of value in vse and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount, Any impairment recognised is not allocated to any
aszel, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any feversal
of 1hat impairment is recognised in accordance with 1AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the Investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases 1o have joint contral over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire intesest in the invesiee with a resuliing gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former joint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value ae
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture, In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previcusly recogmised in other comprehensive income in relation ta that joint
venture on the same basis as would be required §f that joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that joint venture would be reclassified o profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or labilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss fram equity 1o profit or
loss (as a reclassitication adjustment) upon partial disposal of the relevant joim venure.

The Group has incurred additional development expenditure for the construction and
development of the toll expressways operated by the joint ventures, which were not accounted
fior by those entities. Such cost ane included in additional cost of investments in joint ventures and
are amotised over the joint venture period on the same basis as that adopted by the relevant joing
ventures in respect of amortisation of its project cost, commencing from the date of operation of
the project undertaken. On disposal of a joint venture, the attributable amount of the Gnamonised
additional cost of investments is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal,

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group, profits and [osses resulting from
the tramsactions with the joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only 1o the extent of interests in the joint venture that are not related to the Group,
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.2 Significant accounling policies (continued)

Froperty and equipment

Progerty and squipment ane tangille assets that are held for use in the supply of goods or services,
or Tor administrative purpases. Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subseguent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation ks recognised so as 1o write off the cost of assets over thedr estimated useful lives,
using the straight=-line method, The estimated vseful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective boasis,

An item of propery and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future sconomic
benefits ane expected (o arise from the continued vse of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference
betwenn the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in prafit or
loss,

Revenue from confracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisiied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the panicular performance obligation is transferred
1o the customer,

A pprfn-rm:mcn obligation represents a good or senvice (or a bundle of gonds o services) that is
distinet or a seres ol distinet goods of services that ane substantially the sami.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference 1o the progress
towards complete satisiaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met;

*  the customer simultanecusly receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
perdormance as the Group perfonms;

*  the Group's periormance creales or enhances an assel that the customer controls as the
Group performs; o

*  the Growp's periormance does not create an asset with an alternative wse to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable rght to payment for pedormance completed 1o date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct good or service.
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily fake a substantial penod of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added 1o the cost of those assets unill such time as the assels are
substantially ready for their intended vse or sale;

All ather Borrowing costs are recognised in profil of loss in the period in which they ane incurfed,

Leases

Definition of a lease
A contract s, of containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an
identificd agset for a period of ime in exchange for consideration,

For contracts entered into or modified on or aiter the date of initial application or arising from
busingss combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate, Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions af the contract are subsequently

changed.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-lerm lease ecognition exemplion fo leases of car parks and office
that have a lease term of 12 months o less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-lerm leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term,

Government grants
Covernment grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Growp will
comply with the conditions attaching 1o them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no

iuture related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Such grants are presented under “other income =,

88  Swenibwen investment Huhfings ey Avra Develapmeen Cossparny Limied

172/241



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For iy pear et B Decembes 2120

4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.2 Significant accounling policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transaclions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of ihe transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denaminated in foreign currencies are rotranslated ot the rates prevailing at thae date, Non-
monctary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
redranslated,

Exchange dificrences arising on the seitlement of monctary items, and on the retranslation of
manetary ilems, are recognised in profil of loss in the pedod in which they arise,

Foer the= puirposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Growp's foreign operations are translated into the presentation curtency of the Growp {ie.
RME] using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reparting period, Income and expenses
iems are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly dunng the period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of transactions are
used, Exchange difierences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
asccumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve,

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group's entine interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of contral over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial assetl, all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified 1o profit or loss,

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when
employess have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxalion
Income lax expense represents the sum of the tax corrently pavable and deferred tax,

The tax currenily payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
prodit before fax because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never faxable or deductible, The Group's Bability for current tax is caloulated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enactod by the end of the reporting penod,

Dederred tax §s recognised on temporary diffierences between the carrving amounis of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, Deferred tax labilities are generally recognised for all taxable
femporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised, Such deterred tax assets and liabilities ane
not recognised il the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liahilities in a transaction that afiects neither the taxable profic nor the accounting profit,

Dederred tax labilities are recopnised for taxable temporary dificrences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and i is prnimblu- thai the tempaorary difference
will mot revesse in the foresecable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised (o the extent that i
is prabable that there will be sulficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary ditferences and they are expected 1o reverse in the loreseeable fulure.,

The carrving amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting pericd and
reduced to the extent that it & no longer probable that sufiicient axable profits will be available
10 allow all or part of the azset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rabes that are expected o apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the repaning period.

The measurement of deferned tax liahilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would

fallow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.2 Significant accounling policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ofiset when there is a legally enforceable right o set off
current bk assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the
same laxable entity by the same authosity.

Current and deferred tax are recognisaed in profit or lass, except when they relate to items that are
fecognised in other comprehensive income of directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or dicectly in equity respectively.

Financial instrumenis

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group emtity becomes a party o
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases ar sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
establishad by regulation or comvention in the market place,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured a1 fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Habilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities a1 fair valoe through profit or loss (“FYTPL*)) are added
to of deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recopnition, Transaction costs direcily aftributable to the acquisition of financial assels or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in prodit or loss,

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amonised cost of a linancial assel or
financial Hability and of allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant period,
The eifective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or recelved that form an integral pant of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expecied life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, o the net carrying
amaount an initial recognition,
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assels
Classification amd subsequent measurement of financial assefs
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsegquently measured at amortised cost;

& the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

#  the contractual terms give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FYTOC"):

*  the financial asset s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows: and

= thee contractual lerms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

All other financial assets are subsequently measured al FVTPL, except that at the date of initial
application of IFRS %initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irevocably elect o
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income
il that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer ina business combination to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applics.

Amaowtised cost and intefest income

Interest ingome is recognised using the effective interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debi instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCL, For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is caloulated by applying the effective imterest rate 1o the gross carrying
amaunt of a financial asset, excepl for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below), For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impained, interes)
income is recognised by applying the efiective interest rate to the amorised cost of the financial
assel from the next reporting period, If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting pericd following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
imipsired.
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.2 Significant accounling policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assels (continued)
Classification and subsequent measprement of financial assets fcontinued)
Eqpuity anstrurments designated as at FYTOCT
Investments in equity instruments at FYTOC! are subsequently measured at falr value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprchensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserae; and ane not subject o impairment assessment,
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified te profit of loss on disposal of the cquity
investmenes, and will be ransferned 1o retained prodits,

Drividends from these investmunts in eauity instruments are recognised in prodit or loss when the
Giroup's right o receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the other income line
item in profit o loss,

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCT or
designated as FVTOC! are measured at FYTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measwred at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised In profit or loss, The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the “other
Income “linge ilem,

Impairment of fimancial assefs

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss (“ECL™) model on financial
assets (including interest and other receivables, amount due from a joint venture, time deposit
with original maturity over three months and bank balances and cashj which are subject o
impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The amount of BCL s updaied at each reporting date fo
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition,

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument, In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of litetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months aiter the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of hath
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assels (continued)

Impairment of inancial assels feontinged)

For all instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since inbtial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lijetime ECL should be recognised i
bBased on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
fecagnithon,

Significant increase in credit sk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased sipnificantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as ai the date of initlal recognifion. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasanabile and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that
is available withaut undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken Inlo account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s exiernal (if
available) or internal credit rating:

& signiticant delerioration in external markel indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debror;

= gxisting or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected (o cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ahility to meet its debt obligations;

*  an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;

= an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations,

Irmespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual paymenis are more than 30 days

past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise,
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.2 Significant accounling policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assels (conlinued)

Impairment of financial assels (continued)

Srgrificant increase i Credil sk {cantinued|

Desplte the aloregoing, the Group assumes thai the credii risk on a debt instrument has not
increased sigmificantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument s determined to have low
crodif risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument s determinged to have low credit risk i 0) it has
a low risk of default, (0] the borrower has a strong capacity o meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the pear term and (1) adverse changes in cconomic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to Tulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument (o have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions,

The Group regularly monitars the effectiveness ol the criteria used to identify whether there has
been acsignificant increase in credin risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criterla
are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amoum becomes past due,

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obiained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full {without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group),

Credir-impatred fnancial asses

A financial psset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a detrimental

impact on the estimated future cash fMows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a

financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the ssuer or the borrower;

(bl a breach of contract, such as a defaull or past due event;

ic)  the lenderis) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating 1o the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the bormower a concession(s) that the lender(s) wauld

not atherwise consider;

(di it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; o

&) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assels (continued)

Impairment of inancial assels feontinged)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a inancial asset when there s information indicating that the counterparty
15 in severe financial difficulty and there s no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under Higuidation or has entered into bankruptcy procesdings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedunes, aking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitubes a
desccognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss,

Measurement and recagnrtian of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (Le. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default, The assessment of the
probability of defaull and loss given defaelt is based on historical data and torward-looking
information, Estimation of ECL reflects an unbissed and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of defaull ocourring as the weights,

Cenerally, the ECL is the difference between all conteactual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects (o receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at Initial recognition.

For collective assessment, the Group fakes imo consideration the follewing characteristics when
formulating the grougpang:

o Past-due status;
s Matwre, size and industry of debitors; and
+  External credil ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly roviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each group
continue 10 share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on amontised
cost of the financial asset.
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.2 Significant accounling policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognilion of financial assels
The Group devecogmises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset o another entity.

On derecagnition of a financial asset measured at amartised cost, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
protit and loss,

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition 1o measure at FYTOC!, the cumulative gain or loss previously acoumulated in the
invesiment revaluation reserae §s not reclassified to profit or loss, but s transfersed (o retalned
profits,

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debl or equity

(et and equity instruments ane classified as cither financial Habilities or as eguity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual armangements and the definitions of a financial Hability and
an equity instrument,

FEequity imstruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group

atter deducting all of its habilities, Equity instruments issued by & group entity are recognised at
the proceeds recelved, net of direct ssue costs.

Financial Hahilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured a1 amartised cost using the effective interest
method,

Financial Nabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including payables, bank loans and dividend payables are subsequently
measured al amortised cost, using the effective interest mothod.
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity {continued)
Derecogmition of fimancial labilities
The Group derecognises financial labilitios when, and anly when, the Group’s obligations ane
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial lability derecognised and the consideration paid and pavable s recognised in prodit or
liss,

Impairment an properly and equipment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carmying amounts of its property and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment. IF any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant assel is
estimated in order 1o determine the extent of the impairment (il any),

The recoverable amount of property and eguipment are estimated individually, When it s ol
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amiaunl of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that corporate assets may be impained.
I such indication exists, corpoeate assets are also allocated o individual cash-generating umits,
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or olhenwise they are
allocated to the smallest BrOUp of cash-genersting units for which a restsonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amaunt is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the risks
specific to the asset (of a cash-generating unit] for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not heen adjusted.
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4. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

4.2 Significant accounling policies (continued)

Impairment on property and equipment {continued)

1N the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated 1o be bess than s
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assels or portion of corporaie asseis which cannod be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis (0 a cash-generating wnit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating wnits, including the carrving amounts of the corporate
assils oF portion of corporate assets allocated 1o thal group of cash-geaciating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment s allocated first to reduce the carying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the ather assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrving amaount of each asset in the wunit
of the group of cash-generating units, The carryving amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of lis fair value less cosis of disposal (f measurable), lis value in use (F determinable) and
#oro, The amount of the impairment that would otherwise have been allocated (o the asset is
allocated pro rata 1o the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An
impairment is recognised immediately in profit or loss,

Where an impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset jor cash-generating
unit or a growp of cash-gencerating units) is increased 1o the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss,

5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

Ie the application of the Group®s accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the Directors are
requined o make judgements, estimates and assumplions aboul the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimales and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considened to e relevant, Actual resulis
mary differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are revicwed on an on-going basis, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate 15 revised i the revision affects only that

period, oF in the vear of the revision and future periods i the revision alfects both current and Tulune
periods,
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty teontinued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the Directars
have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements,

Classification of Guangrhou-Shenzhen-Zhuhai Superhighway Company Limited (“GS V™),
Guangdong Guangrhou-Zhuhai Wes!t Superhighway Company Limited (“GZ West V") and
Xintang IV as joint venlures

AlLGS W, GE West |V and Xintang |V are limited hiability companies whose legal form conters
soparation bebween the partics 1o the joint arrangement and the Company itsell, Furthermone, there ane
no contractual arrangements or any other Facts and circumstances that specify that the parties 1o the
joint arrangement have righis to the assets and obligations for the labilities of the joint arangement.
Accordingly, GS |V, GF West |V and Xintang IV are classified as joint ventures of the Group, Details
are st out in nate 16,

Key sources of eslimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting periods that may have a signiticant risk of causing a material
adjustment 1o the earrving amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year,

Interests in joint ventures/share of results of joint ventures

(il Amortisation of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures

Amaortisation of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures of the Group is calculated based
an units-of-usage basis, i.e. the mtio of actual traffic valume of the underdving toll expressways
for a particular period over the total expected raffic volume of the wndedying toll expressways
awver fhe remaining concession periods of the service concession agreements. The total expecied
traffic volume over the remaining concession period was estimated by the management with
reference to a report prepared by a third party trafiic consultant in a prior year taken into
consideration of various factors such as the annual growth rate of the traffic volume, the actual
wraffic volume in the recent periods, the change of the transportation retwork of the region and
government policies relating to the toll expressway operation in the PRC. As part of the
established policy of the Group, the management has reviewed the 1al expected traffic volume
at the end of the reponting perinds. Adjustments may need (o be made to the carrying amounts of
concession intangible assets should there be a material difference between the total expected
wraffic volume and the actual results.
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Interests in joint ventures/share of results of joint ventures (continued)

(i} Amortisation of concession inlangible assels of the joint venlures continued)
As at 11 December 2020, the interssts in joint verdures amounted o RMB4,673, 688,000 (2019
RMB4, 858,483, 000) and the share of resulls of joinl ventures for the year then ended 31
December 2020 amounted 1o RMB295,090,000 (2019: RMBZ00,552,0000. Incleded in the share
of results of joint ventures was an amount of RMBG25,5%96,000 (2019; RMBG624 304,000, which
represented the share of amortisation of concession intangible assets of the joint ventures of the
Group, The management considers that the amortisation is calculated by reference to the best
estimates of the total expected traific volumes of the underlying il expressways and they shouwld
not be materially different from the actual traific volumes in future. The curent year amortisation
of concession intangible assets i< less (20019 less) than the amortisation estimated in the prios
financial year based on the then expected traflic volumes for future financial years and the effect
om share of resulis of joint ventures ks approximate o RMBBG,835,000 (2019: RMB26, 383,000),

(i) Resuriacing obligations of the joinl venlures
The joint ventures of the Group have contractual ebligations under the contraciual service
arrangements o maintain the (ol expressways (o a specified level of serviceability over the
respective concession periods, These obligations 10 maintain or restore the oll expressways,
except for upgrade services, are to be recognised and measured as resurfacing obligations,
Resuriacing obligations had been made at the present value of expenditures expecied to be
incurred by the joint ventures 1o settle the obligations,

As at 31 December 2020, the interests in joint ventures amounted o RMB4,673, 688,000 (2019
RMB4, 858,483,000} and share of results of joint ventures for the year then ended 31 December
20200 amiounted to RMB295, 090,000 (2019 RMBTO0,552,0000. Included in the interests in joim
vEntures was an amaount of RMB256,604,000 (2019: RMB236,207,000), which represented the
share of provision for the resurfacing obligations of the joint ventures of the Group,

The amount expected o he required to settle the obligations at the end of the reporting period is
determined based on the number of major resurfacing warks to be undertaken over the
concession periods under the service concession agreements and the expected costs to be
incurred for each event. The costs are then discounted 1o the present value based on a pre-tax
discount rate,
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty teontinued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Interests in joint ventures/share of results of joint venlures (continued)

(i) Resurfacing obligations of the joinl venlures (continued)
The expected costs for maintenance and resurfacing and the timing of such events o take place
mvolve estimates made by the management, which were based on the resurdacing plans of the
Group, histarical costs incurred for similar activities and the latest quotations from the service
provider.

If the expected expenditures, resurfacing plans and discount rate were different from the
management's current estimates, the change in resurfacing obligations is recuired 10 be accounted
far prospectively.

The management are of the view that the discount rate currently used in the current estimate
should reflect the time value of money and the risks specific o the obligations.

6. Segment Information

The Group's reportable and operating segments are determined based on information reported to the
chief operating decision maker (*CODM®) for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
RELTEN L TE T

Information reported o the CODM, including segment revenue, the Group's share of joint ventunes”
carnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation before net exchange pgain/loss ("EBITDA").
the Group’s share of joint ventures” depreciation and amaostisation including amortisation of additional
cost of investments in joint ventures (*depreciation and amortisation”), the Group’s share of joint
ventures” interest and tax before tax on exchange gaindoss and including withhalding tax on camings
distributed by joint ventures (“interest and tax”), and segment results, The CODM is more specifically
focused on individizal toll expresswave projects and land development and otilisation project jointly
operated and managed by the Group and the relevant joinl venture partners during the year.
Accordingly, the Group's reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8 "Operating Segments” ane
thensore as ol lows:

- G5 Superhighway
= GZ West Superhighway
= Xintang Interchange

112 raiben bivestment Buh&ing: Riy Afca Dvvelajiient Comsapary 1 i i
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6. Segment Information (continued)

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.

Segment revenue and resulls

an My
o o oy ST gy -l Lot et
LT [EP04  amoingon e iy . IO b i lm et
Tallsxgrrmmeany ot
ik Sprfugha Lamis LN T R L LT L1 I L] T
G Wk Soprrbaghouc THLIM ] MIES ML 1M S L I DR WY
LH LN SED bW WEND AL BT MLTR LR i
Land ey et gl whlurtion ot
Urrang m e - n . LA || . = s - ALl LW
Taksd 1WA L i G FUl LTLE T MLITE (P D
{ papcile mirvre o e
Susi i, LER Ly}
{ e TS v .
ke deposd = (1]
L oopursie e o v o s
mair by the (v in 2 et wimmare (L] i
ukim o ki ot of 3 o wesiey . s
(they e il | L
L peurate proeral il b
e A i 1] (i
L e s (& 7] (L
oty mcme L o {191 QLT
\erl wcharsge ko] o e
v wwnew s e [F15 fan
Froft e e (L1 LIk ]
Pt iy the o st bl it
iy, LT S
Tk e e o atrfudable o
i e i (tH.L] LR

Mate: Mot exchange (loss) gain (net of related income tas) is composed of the Group's share of the exchange gain (net of related
irscames Lan) al @ joint vestuee of BMBSE, 755,000 (2019 nel exchange boes ined of melabed inoome tox) of RME1S,742,000)
sl thee ned ewchange gain of the Group of EMRT 378,000 2019 net exchangs low ol RMBS, 592,000

The segment revenue represents the Group®s share of joint ventures” toll revenue received and
receivable (net of value-added tax) from the operations of toll expressways in the PRC based on the
profit-sharing ratios specified in the relevant joint venture agreements. All of the segment revenoe
reparted above is eamoed from external customers.

The segment resulis represent the (1 Group's share of jolnt ventures' resulis from the operations of toll
exprossways and land development and utilisation in the PRC before net exchange gain/loss (net of
related income tax) respectively based on the profit-sharing ratios and shareholding porcentage
specificd in the relevant joint ventune agreemients, (i) niet of the withholding tax atteibuted 1o the
dividend received from and the undistributed camings of the joint ventures; and (iii) amortisation of
additional cost of investments In joint ventures, This is the measure reported 1o the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,

Armua] Reparr 2020 113
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6. Segment Information (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

The total sepment results can be reconciled 1o the share of results of joint ventures as presented in
consalidated staterment of prafit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows;

2NHg 20241
RMEB 000 RMBO00
Tatal segment results 674,424 214,014
Agldl:
et exchange iloss) gain (net of related income tax) (15,742) 59,755
Withhalding tax attributed to the dividend received from
and the undistributed carminps of the joint ventures 41,870 21,31
Share of recults of joint venlures as presented in consolidited
statement of prafit or loss and other comprebensive income 700,552 295,090

Other segment information

The below other segment information, included in the measure of segment prodit or loss, represents the
Group’s share of interest income from bank deposits and amount dee from a joint venture and
investment income from structured deposit. Such amount relating to the joint ventures are eliminated
under equity method of accounting to reconcile from “Segment total” to “Consolidated total”.

GS G West Ninfang Segmont Consodinafed

Year Superhighway Superhighway  Inlerchange fotal  Efimination  Unallcated Tatal
RME'000 RMEB D00 RME 000 RAE TN RMB K] RMBTO0 RME DN

2019 4,067 1,137 33 523% {3,259} 4,080 4,080
2020 8979 2,106 114 1.1 (11,279 594979 59979

Geographical information

The operations of the Group®s jaint ventures are located in the PRC. All of the joint ventures’ revenae
from external customers was penerated from the services provided in the PRC and the location ol the
non-current assets excluding interests o joint ventures, amount due from a joint venture, equity
instrument af FYTOC) and property and equipment located in the PRC amounting to RMB1, 782,000

{201 9; RMB1,546,000) are in Hong Kong,

Segmenl assels and liabilities

Sepment assets and liabilities are not disclosed in the consalidated financial statements as they are not
regularly provided to COEM for the purpose of resource allocation and perdformance assessmont,

T1d - Sharnaben livestment Huhfiigs Ray Anva Develbapmsen Cosspany 1 gl
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7. Other Income

2019 20
RMEB 000 RMBOG0

Interest income from;
Bank deposits 2,156 B,939
Amaunt due from a joint venture 1,924 49,517
Investment incame from structured deposit - 1,503
Government grants (Note) - 1,027
Dividend income from equily instrument al FVTOCI 3,120 1,100
(hhers 214 2072
7,414 64,178

Motes During the carment year, the Groop recognised government grants of RMB1,027 000 in respect of COVIDS 1 3 arolied
sudisidies, of which RAE] 037 000 melabes b Ervgilayyrmient Suppdn S lierries provided by thie Horg Kong Governmment.

8. Other Gain and Loss

2019 220
RME OO0 RMEOGD
Mot exchange (loss) gain (5,892) 13,378
Cain o disposal of properly and equipment 144 =
{5,748) 13,378
9. Share of Results of Joint Ventures
2019 2020
RME 000 RMBOO0
Share of results of joint ventures before share of imputed
interest expenses incurred by a joint venture on
interest-free registered capital contributions made by the
Group and amortisation of additional cost of investments
in joint veniures (MNote 16} 792,358 388,039
Amortisation of additional cost of investments in joint venlures 197,.806) (92,949)
Share of imputed interest expenses incurred by a joint venture
an interesi-iree registered capital contributions made
by the Group (52,499) (35,784)
Imputed interest income recognised by the Group on
interest-free registered capital contributions made by the Group 52,499 55,784
700,552 295,000

Armual Repaurr 2020 415
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10. Income Tax Expense

2019 2024
RME ) BB G

The tax charge compaises:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") 33,006 176,487
Deferred tax (Mote 24) 9,630 (5,483
42,6446 171,004

Mo provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as there was no assessable prafit decived from
or arising in Hong Kong for bath years.

The EIT charge of the Group for the vear ended 31 December 2020 included an amount of
RMB26,340,000 (201%: BRMBIZ,704,000) representing the 5% withholding tax imposed on dividends
declared during the year by joint ventures of the Group of which the corresponding amount had
afready been provided for deferned tax in prior years in respect of undistributed eamings of a jaine
venture,

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled o the profit bofore ax per consalidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

FLLE ) 2020

RMB00D  RMB'000

Profit before lax G621 Hid, THT
Tax at normal PRC income tax rate af 25% (2009: 25%) 165,905 216,197
Effect of different tix rates on income tax expense 1503} (469)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 1611y (5,532)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 11,123 13,260
Tax offect of share of results of joint ventures (175,138) (73,773)
Withholding tax on earnings distributed by joint ventures 41,870 21,31
Income tax expense 42,646 171,004

"'Iﬁ Shrniten livestiment Huhfings Rey Aoea Dvvelagrsent Cosspany Linm sl

190/241



EDINETOOOO

OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For iy pear et B Decembes 2120

11. Profit for the Year

2019 2020
RN B OO RMEB OO0
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:
Auditor's remuneration 1,542 1,668
Directors” emoluments (Note 12) 8279 8037
Oiher stail costs 15,315 17,530
Tonal stafi costs 23,504 25,567
Depreciation of property and eguipment A6l 575
Finance costs [MNobe) 1,306 17,266
Shirt-term lease expense 1,648 1,70
Male: Thi amount respresents the bank charges and bank koan inberests (o bsoth yoans.
smmual Reparr 2nzn 117
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12. Directors' and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments

Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments paid or pavable to cach of the 9 2019: 9 Directors were as follows;

k] NN
Conmdion ottiulan
] L]
i e hadiney retupte

Deecir”  adether Denetonry e Direchwr”  afother Dicreliowey  beanfi

BT FIRT0 DR, AMFTOD O RMITGR  RMUDND R0 DWERO DA ANTe

Npegurplng Beamin
Thenp LLI* Mate i - - - - - - - - -
Clgyong (11" indsie 4] - - - [ - - - - -
e AP n ¥ = - m a1 = = - m
Jryang TANG® [Note o) i - - - M 195 - - - "
W UKL e ) - - - - - i - - - i
Faecutive Direclans
Tardimg THAND 17 1 i1 o L ™ Lain Me 155 1N
Cheng WL 1T L] &1 n 1) (] 53] m m 156
Bl 1T L] Wl b | 10% m (] b | m 191
Indepradest Sob-turuhe

Direcion
Brian Daviel Mo Bam Ul (3] - - B i ] - - - 1t
Yo Ling CHISG m - - m {4 - - - I
Tomy Chamg in KON 1 - - - (] L] - - - L |

m s 119 .5 f i 15 by ] e ™ (14

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for their services. in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group, The emoluments of the Non-executive
Diroctors and Independent Mon-executive Directors shown above were paid for their services as
Drectors.

Modea:

fab M Thengyu LIU® did mot eeceboe any emolument inhis capacity a5 a Nom-esecudive Divector of the Company and (he
Chairman of the Board for bath years.

fhl wee Qingyong GU* was sppolnsed as & Nom-executhve Ditectior of the Company on 27 August 2008 and ceased 1o act ds a
Non=xecutive Direclor of the Company an 19 March 2019,

(el M fiyang TANG® was appoinied o a Nor-execulive Director of the Company on 19 March 2009 and coased 1o 200 a5 2
Mon-awneulive Direclor of e Comgany on 12 gt M.

() wee Wesguo ZOMG® was appointed as o Mon-execulive Director af the Company on 12 Augurst 2020,

a For identiicatbon purpose anky

118 Swenibwen investment Huhfings ey Avra Develapmsem Cossjarny Limied
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12, Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Individuals’ Emoluments continued)
Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments
M the fve individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, 3 (20019 3) were Directors whose

details of their emoluments are disclosed above,

The emoluments of the remaining 2 (2019 2) highest paid employees were as follows:

2019 2020

RMEB 000 RMEBOG0
Salaries and odher benedits 2113 2,265
[Fiscretionary bonus 254 274
Contribution 1o retirement benefits plans 32 a2
2,399 151

The number of the highest paid employees who are not Directors whase remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

20149 2021

Mo, of Na. of

employvecs vimployees

HEKS1,000,001 to HES1,500,000 2 2

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, no emoluments were paid by the Group o any
of the persons who are Directors or the five highest paid individuals of the Group a5 an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office, None of the Directors bas waived
any emoluments during both years,

13. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable 1 the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

2019 2020
RN B OO RAB 06
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per share 612,026 BitH, b1
Mumber of shares
2019 20
Mumber of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic
earings per share 3,081,600,283  3,081,690,283

Mo diluted sarnings per share have been presented as there was o potential ordinary shares in issue
during bath years.

Armual Repaurr 2020 1719
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14. Dividends

2019 20240
RME ) BB QN

Dividends recognised as a distribution during the year:

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 20149

pabd of RMB9,8 cents (equivalent to HK10,97 1394 cents)

per share 305,852 -
Final dividend for the vear ended 31 December 2019

paid af RMBI0.1 cents (equivalent o HK11.320989 cents)

(2019 for the six months ended 31 December 2018 paid of

RMBA.9 conts (equivalent to HK11.615472 cents)) per share 307,573 320,807
Special interim dividend for the vear ended 31 December 20200

payable of EMB10 cents fequivalent to HK11.787600 cents)

per share - 07,715
613,425 628,522

2019 2020

FAE 00 RMEB D)

Proposed dividend:

Final dividend for the vear ended 31 December 2020
proposed of EMBED.] cents (equivalent to HKT0.936835 cents)
[20719: for the vear ended 31 December 2019 paid of
EMBIOL conts (equivalent o HEST1.320989 cents)) per share 311,251 280,434

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 of RMEBES.1 cents (equivalent 1o
HK10.936835 cents) per share is proposed by the Board of the Directors. The dividend is subject 1o
approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting and have not been included as
liabilities in these consalidated financial statements, The proposed final dividend is calculated based
on the total number of issued shares at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.

15. Reliremenl Benefits Plans

The Group has established the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme®) for its Hong
Kong employees, The assets of the scheme are held separately in funds which are under ihe control of
independent trustees, The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to profit or loss represent
contributions paid or payable by the Group 1o the scheme at 5% of each of the employees’ monthly
relevant income capped at HES30,000. In addition, the PRC employees employed by the Group ane
members of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC Government, The
Group is required o contribute 12% of their payrall o the retinement benefit schemes o fund the
benefits. The only abligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benelit schemes 15 10 make
the required contributions under the schemes, As at 31 December 2020, there were no forfeiled
contributions available 1o reduce fulure obligations. The total contributions made by the Group o the
MPF Scheme and the PRC retirement benefit schemes for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
RMB1, 527,004 (2000 9: RMB1,651,000),

1’2“ Shrniten livestiment Huhfings Rey Aoea Dvvelagrsent Cosspany Linm sl
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Four e year et 21 Decemibes 21020

16. Interests in Joint Ventures

2019 020
RMEBOM RMEB OO0
Unlisted investments:
AL cosl
Cost of investment in a joint venture 2,024,539 L022,289
Additional cost of invesimenls 2520218 2520,118
Share of results of joint ventures before share of
imputed interest expenses incurred by a joint veniure
on interest-iiee registered capital contributions
made by the Group inet of dividend received) 1,582,767 1,475,604
Less: Unrealised profit on disposal of land {32,601) (13,044)
Less: Share of accumulated imputed interest expenses incurred
by a joint venture on interest-free registercd capital
contributions made by the Group (483,895) (539,679)
Less: Accumulated amortisation of additional cost of investments (1,665 141) {1,7568,090)
1,945,877 1,705,298
At amortised cost
Repistered capital contribution, at nominal amoun 2,449 500 2,449,500
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition (2,020,789) (2,020,789)
Accumulated imputed interest incame recognised by the Group 483,895 539,679
912,606 968,390
4,855 483 4,673,688

Particulars of the Group's joint ventures as at 21 December 2009 and 2020 are as follows:

Hace of Proparfin
mﬁ_hur hﬁpid dw_ MI
] priecipul repribered ratal cupial costribitan ok g bebd
Name of company plaoy of oparation il X Poncgal xthity M MM ik} W
RARECRARLE The FRC ol NE Deyelopment b Nl E %
Counrhoe Shinrhn- Thabai (ke § (ke i mpendesand  pplicahle  applicable
Superbighngy (ampuny Furgrmes O
Limited B EnpaTH
APROEARRCERELE Ml RMBAH 0000  EUBLER BN  Drvrlmm 5 4 i e
(angriong Camg thou-Thubi ok & Pnle i ppruation ard
Vet Soprrhighuny Cropues Furupree of
Vimeied N EpT
RHEATERERRLE The IRC PVARAOOAON MBS0 Land develapment (8 {15 % 5%
Tanegriow Theniong Deveoprend Lo (ol i nduthaton (Ml m) (e 1

Compamy Limited*
- Fow iidentiiscalion purpose

Both GS 1V and GZ West |V are sino-foreign co-operative joint vemtune enterprises established to invest
in ol expressways projects in the PRC,

Armual Reparr 2020 121
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16. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

The principal terms of the joint venture agreements entercd into bebween the relovant subsidiaries and
the corresponding joint venture partoers under which the joint ventures operate are as follows:

iy G5V
GS IV is established to undertake the development, operation and management of the GS
Superhighway, an expressway in Guangdong Province of the PRC running botween Shenehen and
Guangzhou, The operation period is 30 years from the ofiicial opening date 1 July 1997, AL the
end of the aperation period, all the immovable assets and facilities of G5 [V will revert to the PRC
joint venture parner withoul compensation.

The Group's entitlement o the prafit of the toll operations of G5 [V i 50% for the initial 10 years
of operation period, 48% for the next 10 years and 45% for the last 10 vears of the operation
peviod,

The registersd capital amounting to HKS702,000,000 (equivalent to RMBAT 1 000,000 previously
injected by the Group 1o GS 1V had been repaid 1o the Group by GS [V during the year ended 30
June 2008,

(i) GZ West |V
GF West IV is established 1o undertake the development, operation and management of GZ West
Superhighway, an expressway linking Guangzhou, Zhongshan and Zhuhai and was built in three
phases,

Phase | of the GZ Wesl Superhighway (“Phase 1| West”)

The total investment for the Phase | West is BMB1,E20,000,000, 35% of which was funded by the
registered capital of GZ West |V amounting 1o RMEBS588,000,000 which had been contributed by
the Group and the PRC joint venture partner in equal share (Le. each 1o contribute
RAB294,000,0000. The operation period for Phase | West is 30 vears commencing from 17
September 2003,

Phase 11 of the GE West Superhighway (“Phase 11 West”)

The total investment for Phase || West is RMBG, 715,000,000, 25% of which was funded by the
registered capital of GZ West [V amounting to RMB2,351,000,000 which had been contributed
by the Group and the PRC joimt venlure partner in equal share (i.e. each ta cantribute
RMB1,175,500,000). The toll collection period for Phase 11 Wiest s 25 vears commencing from 25
Juree 2070,

122 Swenihwen investment Huhfings Ray Avea Develnpmsem Cossjarny Limied
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16. Interests in Joint Ventures jconinued)

(il GZ Wesl |V (continued)
Phase 111 of the GZ West Superhighway (“Phase Il West")
The total invesiment for the Phase [ West is RMBS, 600,000,000, 35% of which was funded by
the registered capital of GZ West 1V amoonting to RME1,960, 000,000 which had been
coniributed by the Group and the PR joint venture pariner in equal share (e, each o coniribute
RMAB9E0,000,000), The toll collection perod for Phase 111 West is 25 vears commencing from 25
January 20173,

As al 31 December 20019 and 2020, the fully paid registered capital of GZ West |V was
RABS, BG4, 000, D00,

The Group is entitled to 500 of the distributable profits from operation of G West [V, At the end
of ihe respeciive operationfioll collection periods of Phase | Wesi, Phase 1| West and Phase 111
West, all the immovable assets and facilities of each phase will be reverted (o relevant PRC
governmental authonty which regulates transportation without compensation, The registered
capital contributions are required 1o be repaid 1o both the Group and the PRC joinl venture
partreer, The repavments are requined to be approved by the Board of Directors of G2 West |V,

(i) Xintang JV
Ximang |V is established to engage in the development of residential project on the Xintang
interchange,

Asal 31 December 2009 and 2020, the fully paid registered capital of Ximang [V was
FEAAB 1 0,000, 04060,

As at 31 December 20019, 37.5% of the registered capital was contributed by the Group. As at 31
December 2020, the Group held 15% equity imerest in the Xintang |V upon completion of the
Partial Disposal.

A gain on the Partial Disposal of approximately BMB545, 181,000 is recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2020, which is based on the consideration received from the Partial Disposal
of approximately RMB1,090,432,000 less corresponding portion of its shareholder's loans
athvanced to Xintang |V and the outstanding interests accrued thereon up to 17 September 2020
of approximately RMBES3 2,534,000 less related fees of approximately RMB12,717,000 and taking
into consideration that the Group's 22559 equity interest of Xintang 1V on the completion date
amounted o zemo,

Summarised financial information of joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's joint ventures and reconciliation of the
summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the interests in the respective joint
ventures recognised in the consolidated financial statements are set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements
prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

Asmual Repart 2NN 123
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16. Interests in Joint Ventures (continued)

Summarised financial information of joinl venlures (continued)
In respect of the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2020:
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S o e bl agree v
o e 4 st vemnen (e 190 - - - - - - onan 1
Camying s of i Gomupy's ietesest
Lot 1ERE] pLa R L2 LR 1ITHaE LR - AT
arryiegg i o e i joend ventares.
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16. Interests in Joint Ventures icontinued)

Summarised financial information of joint ventures (continued)

b1} ) b3 ]
Gl et o et
N & Enting Y Tarad an T Total
L B L] g L (el ] 0T EuFnm
Tl revese et o vabar-added Gy LS LT pA [Tl 5 LBl
Cimrshor mtur ] 115 - 104 .5
Tatal v LS LT - PR [Fal i}
Covsimucion cusly [ (A - [ILLC]] i -
(¥er mome ad he evperse L 1 o uEr lik Hisn Wi e
Fopvriants of e eny urpes 1L ] LT ] - [ 7 -
Tl PPNy O M (T T i} . AL ] AL TR a
Lewrd and siPuresiing npesses kS ] [E=A L 4 L] (% 1 L]
Depmaatan and amorarion thages T i WELTIE . g 17 L AN =
Timance b (LN AT ] [EELTHI [y ]
Vo tn ichirge o Lkl 1108 - L [} S [
ot { v i eyt (e i 13T L0 (SN LEd T [ HE L]
Foporiom of the g o wlerest i W s i W PO
P oy doarmd by e g g b 1¥dl ¥ B4 v (] HLEMI &ATT
Trercite of ereralae profd ce dhpoidd
o i (bt | i - - 11a0 LES - - LE=N
TR L1 TR THLIE W15 (=N LN mram
D ronerve vt o PR wiltbubdong L EER] - - RE ] ] 108,14 - wir
Moles:

7] S |V dispessed of certain land with & canyving amount of BMES 000000 b (ke lecsl government a2 total consideration
of RMB1TS,022 000 in Movember 2014, Subsequendly, Xintang [V won the bid for the land we rights with thas |ecal
government o scquine part of the aforeaid disposed land 21 a total comsideration of RMB, 124,000,000 in December
2019, As a 31 December 2019, a sale and purchase agreement was enteresd inda by Xintamg 1 and the local gowvernment
while the Lland is handed over in 2020, G5 |V i regarded as disposed of cettaln land with a camrying amount ol
RMED,GA 000 tor Xingang [V, An unrealised prodit on disposal of wich Laind amounting 1o RMES261 1,000 & eliminated in

thet comalidated financial s of the Group during the year ended 31 December 20019, Diuiringg the yoar ended 31
December M0, upon completion of the Patial Disposal of Ximang [¥, eorealised profit amounting e RME1D, 567 000 s
released.

lily  Profit dor the year of GS W included the amount of BMB132, 789,000 ropresenting the exchange gain inet of nelatesd
irecomme Land (20019 exchange lois (net of nelatbed income ta of BMBI4 982 (00,

17. Equity Instrument at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

The Group holds the interest in unlisted |imited company established in the PRC (the “Invesiment”),
which Directors have elected o designate the Investment in equity instrument as at FVTOCT as they
believe that the investment is not held for trading and not expected 1o be sold in the foreseeable future.

Ammua] Repaurr 2070 125
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18. Property and Equipment

Fuirriileire,
Maotor fixtures and
velicles equipment Total

RAMB OO0 RAMB T RMEB0MD
COST
As at 1 January 2019 1610 4,679 6,289
Aulditbons - Gl GG
Disposal 337) (19 (356)
As at 31 December 2019 1,273 5,276 5,549
Adlditions. 758 g2 1,140
As at 31 December 2020 2,031 3,658 7684
DEPRECIATION
As at 1 January 2019 464 4,534 4,998
Charge for the year 255 106 161
Eliminated on disposal (337) {18} 1356)
As at 31 December 20049 iz 4,621 5.003
Charge for the year 356 219 575
As at 31 December 2020 Ti8 4,840 5,578
CARRYING AMOUNTS
As at 31 December 2009 a91 655 1,546
As at 31 December 2020 1,293 Bl 2,111

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives of 3 10 5
years from the date on which they became available for their intended use using the straight-line
method,

19. Amount Due From a Joint Venture

As at 31 December 2020, taking into account the sharing of losses from Xintang IV, the amount due
from a joint venture represented an amount due from Xintang |V of approximately RMB322,792,000
(2019; RMB311,224,000) which is unsecured, interest bearing at 8% (2019: 8%} per annum and
repayable in 2022 and 2023. Based on the Group's contribution plan over the investment in Xintang
¥, the Directors consider the amount forms part of the Group's net investment in Xintang |V which
accordingly canstituted the inferest in Xintang |V for sharing losses from Xintang V.

In addition, an amount of RMB27,041,000 (2019: nil) is unsecured, interest bearing at 6% per annum
and repayable in 2021, The Direclors expect that the additional loan will be recoverod within the nex
twelve months from the reparting date based on the Group’s contribution plan.

Accordingly, RMB322 792,000 is classificd as non-current asset and RMB27,041,000 is classified as
curment asset for the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position.

[hetails of impairment assessment are set out in note 27.
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20, Structured Deposit

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's structured doposit reprosents financial peoduct issued by the
bank, with maturity of 30 days on 13 Jangary 2027 and an expected retum-at 3.81% per annom, The
investment in financial product is classifled as financial assets at FVYTPL at initial recognition and
mexsured at fair value af the end of the reporting period, The Directors consider the fair value of the
financial product approximate to the carrying amount as at 31 December 2020 because of the short
ittty

21. Bank Balances and Cash/Time Deposit With Original Maturity Over
Three Months

As at 31 December 2020, bank balances and cash comprized cash held by the Group and bank
balances which carried interest at market rates ranging from 0.07% e 2.9% (20019: 0.01% to 4.57%)
[REF AN,

As at 31 December 2020, time deposit with original maturity over three months carried interest at
prevailing market rate at 3.95% (2019: nil) per annum.

Analysis of bank balances and cash and the time deposit with original matunty over three months of
the Girowp by currency:

20719 2020
EMEB O RME OG0
RMB 2,916 754,902
HKD 46,865 4,13
United States dollars ("USDT) 4 9
49,785 759,042
Details of impairment assessment are sel oul in nate 27,
22. Share Capital
Mumber Mominal
of shares anviunt
HKS 000
Chrdinary shares of HKSDL1 each
Authorised:
As at 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 2020 160, 000, (W WD, 0D 1. 000,000
Number of shares Nowmmal amoeint
Ecpuivalent o
HES O RAMB OO0
Isswed and fully paid:
As at 1 January 2019,
31 December 2009 and 2020 1,081,690,263 308,169 270,603
ammial Repair 2nzn - 127

201/241



EDINETOOOO
OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fowr yrar prwden] 11 Phcember MNP

22. Share Capital (continued)

Share option scheme

Aghare option scheme was approved for adoption by the shareholders of the Company effective an 22
Oetober 2003 ithe “Share Option Scheme”), The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of fen years and the purpose of which s 1o provide the Company with an alternative means of
giving incentive 1o rewarding, remunerating, compensating andfor providing benefits to (i) any
director, chief executive or employee (whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the Groug; (i)
any discretionary object af a discretionary trust established by any director, chicel executive oF
emplayes (whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the Group; (i) a company beneficially
owned by any director, chief executive or employee (whether full-time or pan-time) of any member of
the Group: (iv) any consultant, professional and other adviser 1o any member of the Group ar any
consultant, professional and other adviser proposed to be appointed to any member of the Group
(including any of their employees, partners, directors or executivesy; (vl any assochabes of any director,
chief executive, or substantial shareholder of any member of the Group and for such other purposes as
the Board of Directors may approve from time to time, No share options under the Share Option
Scheme wiere granted, fodeited, vested, lapsed or outstanding in the years presented,

Share award scheme

On 25 January 2007, an employees’ share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme®) was adogied by
the Company, The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 15 years commencing
fram 25 |anuary 2007, Pursuant 10 the rules of the Share Award Scheme, the Company has set up a
trust, HHI Employess” Share Award Scheme Trust, for the purpose of administering the Share Award
Scheme and holding the awarded shares before they are vested. There were no awarded shares
granted, foreited, vested, lapsed or outstanding in the years presentisd,

128 Swenibwen investment Huhfings Ray Avra Develapmsen Cossparny Limied
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23, Company’s Statement of Financial Position

2019 20
RMEB 000 RMBOG0
ASSETS
Mon-current Assels
Investments in subsidiaries 1,445,326 1,341,358
Amount due from a subsidiary 1,603,379 1,685,291
3,138,705 3,026,649
Current Assels
Deposils and prepayments A0 33z
Intirest receivablos - 915
Amounts due from subsidiaries 302,910 875,412
Bank balances and cash 1,533 492,447
304,843 1,369,106
Total Assets 1,443,548 4,395,755
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 270,603 270,608
Share premium and reserves 1,002,569 2,795,374
3,273,172 1,065,977
Current Liabilities
Payables and accruals 3.3m 2,878
Dividend payables - 306,030
Amounis due io subsidiaries 167,005 1,020,870
Total Liabilities 170,376 1,329,778
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,443, 548 4,395,755
Cash and cash equivalenis 1,533 492,447
Tianliang FHANG® Ji LiL=
Director Diirector
* Fr Abentifi o i aly
wmmual Repait 2nzn 129
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23. Company's Statement of Financial Position (continued)

Company's Share Premium and Reserves

The Company's reserves available for distribution represent the share premiom and relained prodits,
Under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is
avallable for paying distributions or dividends o shareholders subject to the provisions of fis
Memaorandum or Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the distribution of a
dividend, the Company is abile to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business, In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends can only be distributed oot of the
retained prafits and share promium of the Company. As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reservies
available for distribution to its shareholders amounting to RMB3, 165,974,000 (2019
RME3, 373, 169,0000, comprising retained profits of RMBE2E 285,000 (2009 RMBT,015 480,41 and

share premium of RMEBZ2, 337,689,000 (2019; RMB2, 337, 669,000),

Share  Translation Retained
e FERETVE profifs Fortal
RAB 00 BB OO0 RMEB OO0 R B O
ote)
As at 1 january 2019 1,337,689 [370,600) 442,992 2,410,081
Prodit and toial comprehensive
income for the year - - 1,205.913 1,205,913
Dividends recognised as distribution
during the vear (Mote 14} B - (613,425) {B13,425]
As at 31 December 200149 2,337 689 {370,600) 1,085,480 3,002,564
Profit and total comprehensive
incomme for the vear - - 421,327 421,327
Dividends recognised as distribution
during the vear (Mote 14) - = (624,522) (B628,522)
As at 31 December 2020 2,337,689 [370,600) 26,285 2,795,374
Blode:

Barfoore the change in fmctional cumency of the Compamy from HEKD 10 RsE doring the year onded 50 jure 20049, the exchamge
dilferences recognised in translation reserve represented the difference between the equity fransactions and accumulated
varnangs framslatesd a2 the excharge rates a1 thee transaction dates and the assets and liabilities tramslated af the chosing rales at

the el of pach repusting period.
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24. Deferred Tax Liabilities

The movement of deferred tax liabilities s as follows:

Fair value
change on Tax on
fvestment  wndistributed
i equirly CAFITTEs
fnstrument  of the joint
at FVYTocT veniures Others Total
RMB000 RAB000 RMB 000 RMED00
Asat 1 January 2019 1,042 G:H, 840 - 649, B8
Charge 1o profit or boss - 41,870 44 42,334
Charge 1o other comprehensive income 1,150 - - 1,150
Release to prodit or loss upon
payment of withholding tax - {32,704} - (32,704)
As at 31 December 2019 2,192 78,012 464 0,666
Charge {ecredit) to prodit o loss - 1.3 (464} 20,857
Charge 10 other comprebensive income Han - = H40
Release to profit or loss upon
payment of withholding tax - (26,3407 - (26,3400
Agat 31 December 2020 3,032 71,993 - 76,025
25. Bank Loans
2019 2024
RAE Q00 RMEB OG0
Unsecured (Note) 280,969 1,078,349
The bank loans comprise:
Variable rate loans 280,969 1,078,349

Mole:  As 3t 31 Decembier 200% and 2020, the bank loams are guaranteed by the Company,

Included in bank loans are following amounts denominated in currencies other than functional
curtency of the group entities which it relates:

20018 2020
RMB 0G0 RMB000
HED 280,969 1,078,349

Armual Repairr 2020 131
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25. Bank Loans icontinued)

2019 2024
RME TN RAMEB 00
The borrowings are repavable as follows:

O demand or within one year 280,969 324,347
I the third to fiflth vears inclusive - 754,002
280,969 1,078,349

Less: Amounts due for settlement within one year
{shown under current labilities) (280,969) (324,347
Amounts due for settlement afler one year - 754,002

As at 31 December 2020, variable rate HKD denominated bank loans carried interests ranging, from
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Hate ("HIBOR") plus 0.98% 10 HIBOR plus 1% per annom (201%9;
HIBOR plus 1.05% to HIBOR plus 1.2% per annum).

26. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group™s overall strategy remains unchanged from that of the prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consist of equity atiributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, share premium, retained profits and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The Group will balance its

overall capital structure through the issue of new debit or the repayment of existing delbi.

The Directors monitor the utilisation of bank loans and ensures full compliance with loan covenants
during the year,

132 Shwenibwen investment Huhfings Ray Avea Develnpmsem Cossparny Limied
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27. Financial Instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2019 2021
RMB000 RAE DO
Financial asseis
Financial assets at amortised cost 361,077 1,110,083
Ecquity instrument at FYTOC) 22,600 31,000
Structured deposit at FVTPL - 01,503
383,677 1,942,586
Financial liahilities
Financial liabilities a1 amortised cost 290,622 1,391,071

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The Group's fisk management policies are established to identifty and
analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls to monitor risks
and adherence 1o market conditions and the Group's activities, The Group, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims (o develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations, The Directors
monitor and manage the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group to ensure
appropriate medsures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The Group employs a conservative strategy reganding 15 risk management and does nol engage in
frading of any financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for hedging or

speculative purpose.

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures,

(i  Foreign currency risk
The Group undertake cerain transactions denominated in fnmiﬂn currencies, hence
expasure o exchange (luctuation arise. Certain of the financial assets and financial liabilities
of the Group are denominated in HKD or USD which are currencies other than their
respective functional currencies of the respective group entities, The Group manages its
foreign currency risk by constantly monitoring the movement of the foreign exchange rates.

Armual Repaurr 2020 133
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27. Financial Instruments (continued)

b} Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
The carrving amounts of the foreipn currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabsilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period are as follows;

Assirfs Liabilities
2019 2020 2019 2020
RMB0O0 BB O RAMBO00 BB O
usD 4 9 - -
HEKD A6, 865 411 285,054 1,388,508

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
CUITENCY exposure,

Sensitivity analysis

The foreign currency risk of the Group and a joint venture is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of KMB, the functional currency of the Company, its subsidiaries and a joint
venture as at 31 December 2020, against HKD and USD. The following sensitivity analysis
includes currency risk related to HKD and USD denominated monetary items of respective
group entities and the joint venture,

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally 10 key
management personnel and reprosents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes anly outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary lems and adjusts thelr translation at the vear end for 3 5%
change in foreign currency rate and all ather vanables are held constant.,

As at 31 Decomber 2020, the Group (excluding the joint vemures) had monetary assets and
manetary habilities denominated in HED and USD that is not the functional curmency of the
relevant group entities (Le. RMBL, I exchange rate of RME against HKD and LS had been
strengthenediweakened by 5%, the profit for the year attributable 10 owners of the Company
for the curment period would decreasefinerease by RMB69. 219,000 (2019:; BMB1 1,909,000,

As ar 31 December 2020, a jaint venture of the Group had outstanding bank loans and bank
balances denominated in HKD and USD that are not the functional currency of a joint
venture (e, RMB). The foreign currency risk associated with foreign currency borrowings
and bank balances exposed by a joint venture s reflected in the share of results of joint
ventures, If exchange rate of RMB against HKD and USD had been strengibenediweakenesd
by 5%, the prodit for the year aftributable to owners of the Company for the curent period
would increase/decnease by RMBI9, 600,000 (2019; BMB42,392 D005,
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27. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk
The cash Mlows interest rate risk of the Group relates primarily o variable rate bank loans
and bank balances with details as set out in notes 25 and 21 respectively and the varialdle
rate bank loans and bank balances of i joint ventures.

The Group ks exposed to fair value interest risk in relation to certain bank balances, with
details ag sot oul in note 21, The management conlinues ta monitos the fair value interest
rate expaosure of the Group.,

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis includes only variable financial instruments outstanding a1 the end of
the repodting period were outstanding for the whale peried. A 100 basis points is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting interest rate risk internally o key management persannel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in inlevest rates,

As at 31 December 2020, the Group (excluding its foint venturess are exposed to cash flow
interest rate in relation to the variable rate bank loans and bank balances. If interest rate had
been 100 (2019: 100} basis points higherflower, the profit for the vear attnbutable to owners
of the Company for the current period would increasefdecrease by RMBS, 593 000 (2019:
RMB2, 331,000,

As at 31 December 2020, the joint ventures of the Group are exposed to cash flow interest
rale risk in relation (o the variable rate bank balances and bank loans, I interest rate had
been 100(2019: 1040) basis points highenlower, the profit for the vear attributable to owners
of the Company for the current period would decreasefincrease by RMB25,500,000 (2019
RMB29, 383, 000),

(iii} Credif risk and impairment assessment
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its interest and other receivables, amount
due from a joint veniure, time deposit with original maturity over three months and bank
balances,

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's maximum exposure to credit fsk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure o discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk in amount due from a joint venture.
The management is responsible to exercise the joint control on the relevant activities of the

joint venture with a PRC joint venture partner 1o ensure the joint venture maintaining
favourable financial position in order to reduce such credit risk.

Asmual Repart 2NN 135
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27. Financial Instruments (continued)

b} Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairmend assessment (continued)
In addition, the management and the respective joint ventures are responsible for monitoring
thwr procedures to ensune that follow-up actions are taken 1o recover overdue delds, in ordier
to minimise other credit risks. The management is also responsible for reviewing the
recoveralile amount of each individual debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adeguate impairment are made for irrecoverable amounms, In this regard, the Directors
consider that the GCroup’s enedit resk is significantly reduced,

The credit risks of the Group on liguid funds are limited because the counterparties are
banks with good reputation,

Chiker than the above, the Group has no ofher significant concentration of credit risk,

The taldle below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial assets, which are
subject to ECL assessment:

Cirass
External Internal T 2month o carsying
credit rating  credil rating  Nietime ECL aerpinar |
RABG00
As at 31 December 2005
Fimancial assets af amoised cost
= Amsouint clue from a jois venbun WA Low risk 1 2-maontls ECL 11,224
= Bank balances and cash At MIA 1 2maomnth ECL 45,785
As at 31 December 2020
Financial assets at amartised cost
= Amiainil i o a Jowid werilipht MIA Lo resk 12-manth BCL ]-iq,l:l-],]
- Bank balances and cash As N/A T2.month BCL 519,042
= Time depesit with original maturity
aver teee months Ads NIA 12month ECL 240,008

(iv) Liquidity risk

The Group's treasury activities are centralised to achieve better risk control and minimise
the cost of funds. Cash is generally placed in bank deposits mostly denominated in RMB.
The management aims to maintain a balance between continuity of adequate funding and
the flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings. The Group's liguidity and
financing requirements are reviewed regulary o mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management will consider new financing while maintaining appropriate gearing
ratio.

The carrying amounts of the financial liabilities represent the undiscounted cash flows that
the Group is required to pay and are repayable on demand. Bank Ioans carmried interests

ranging from HIBOR plus 0.98% (o HIBOR plus 1% per annum. All other financial liabilities
are non-interest bearing.
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27. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b} Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

{ivh liquidfl'r risk (continued)
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual matority for its financial
liabilities based on agreed payment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliost date on which the
Group can be required 1o pay. The table includes both imerest and principal cash flows, To
the extent that interest flows are Tloating, the undiscounted amaount is derived from curment
intenest rale al the end of the reporting penod,

Weighted Repayalie

avirape on demand Todal Torl
Hirctive o kess than [year  amelscounied carryng
frfesnes nadee 1 wear fir 5 years cosh Mo amaiit
% RAED00 RME D00 R TR RANE 00

As al 31 December 2019
Other payables - 4653 - 9,653 9653

Bk lowns

- variable rale 4.4 281,521 = 281,521 250,969
291,174 - 91,174 290,622

Weiphied Repayahle

avErage ot alemand Total Total
effective o bess Hhan I year  umdiscoumfod CRITying
inlerest rale ! year lo 5 years casth floiws amuounl
% EMEBTO0 RMEQ00 RME OO0 RME 00

As al 31 December 2020
Orher payables = h,h492 - b, h52 b,652
Dividlend payables - 106,030 - i, 030 306,030

Bank loans:

- variahle rale .13 REERIE TT4,ma7 1,107 950 1,078,349
Bh635 774,037 1,420,672 1,351,071
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fowr mrmd 11 Dovember MG

27. Financial Instruments (continued)

ic) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
Fair value of the Group's financial assets thal are measured at fair value on a recurring

hasis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of cach reporting
period. The following table gives information about how the fair valuees of these financial assets
are determined (in particular, the valuation technigque and inputs used), a2 well as the level of the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1o 3) based
on the degree 1o which the inputs 1o the fair value measurements is observable,

*  Level 1 fair value measurements are those desived fromequoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or lald Hties;

= Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable jor the asset or lability, either directly (e as
pricesh or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

= Level 3 falr value measurements are those derived from valuation iechniques that include
inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data junobservable

impuits).

Valualisa Relitiombia af

Finasclal Farvaloe  techeique and Sigeiicasd imelierrable igguh

] 019 i barrarchy dry ispats wsolnerable ispats fa aie valor [aley

Eopatty imstrumen Unied prpelty  Undited wqualy lewel]  Mardet dppmach  Price-o-samings molliphs  The higher the mullipls,

o P10 Imesimest imilment o weversl pompanahie e bigher the (2l vl
RUBIZ&00000  RMET] D000 AT

ftprperse valo-to-camings - The higher the mulliples,
befire ineres, faars, e Bigher the fir valer
depreciation und
sy isabon {EVTRITIAC)
mdiple of sl
compuable compnin

Stmuchyned depont

el adjenimment e o
drcnent on Lick of
marketabiliy

Ml ARG S o0 Tl § Dirnimied Dol e
cash fow

The highes e dicimnt,
the lowev the fair ke

The lighes the dicoant
e, the kst the

L vaker

Baobet i the pekce-lo-carnings mihiples to the valaation model s 5% higherlower, whilie all the aiber variables s
Tl constamt, thir fair value would inceeaveidecrene by appronimately RASBB14,000 (2019; EMEZIAT, 0080, I (b
risk mlwwr o @ aliscoumi on lack of marketalility o the valusia model §s 5% highenTower, while all s
other vartables were held copstant, the fair value would decreasefinoreass by approaimately BMHE 482 000
L2001 RME G,

The fair values of financial assets and financial labilities a1 amortised costs are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors cansider that the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial Hahilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fir
values,

138  Swenabwen investment Huhfings ey Avra Develapmsen Cossparny Limied
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For ihwe year eoded 11 Decembees 2020

28. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2019
and 2020 which principally affect the results, assets or liabilitics of the Group as the Direclors ane of
the opinion that a full list of all the subsidiaries would be of excessive length.

Fixe of Arvibatable equty Fropartion o
Narve ol wshuh, bk ovwed and [y pusd share b Lhe Company By e ompany Proncigal acimity
i M My T Y ]
Kergrace (VY Lissted Erifish Yirgin Onfimaryshares  Oinfimary shires i i s V5%  mosiment bokbag
ek LIS530, 000 LS50, 000
topewell China Deveioomend — Hoag Kong Crfimary s infimary shine i Wi . V% mesmend
Suptrghay Lrwind Higk HiE! of imiand o insaered Lal e
Meorinhing Naa-valiag ondrany ey [ 22
drterrend b dbelened ihunn tharrs shines
HitE i
Hopewrll Guasgroo-Thahui  Hosg ey Oeliry thars. Dhrsbamiry sharni 1o LY e 1085 lvesapert in
Tagmerhariwiy Thrurbpaiest HERY HIEEY FE = o fyuasred Lt e
firmitead Ionrinling L] iy ordmary Pl
ederred b dbelorred shuens hiiny thures
HLgD HESE
S By A T Limited  Hinag Komg Ondleary e Chreluiey shaee (1 (L ] 108%  Lanfnmre
HiSt HES|
Shermun iy Aivd The PR Oty e Cirebruary shuve % 7% .7 7.5%  Imeenenl boklag
Tt tate (kenthen RMBIET 0G0 00 RMBY3E 500,000
Lopaty Lissind

Except SIH Bay Area Finance Limited, all the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company,

Mone of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the vear.

29, Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group has no outstanding capital commitment,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fowr yrar prwden] 11 Phcember MNP

30. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arizing from financing activities, including
baoth cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cath
flows were, or fulure cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activitios.

Bank Dividends Interest
lovans payabile payable Total
FME 00 RME000 R 000 R QD
As at 1 January 2019 - - - -
Financing cash flows 280,969 P (639,226) {1,123} (359 380)
Dividends declared - 628,587 - 626,587
Interest expense - - 1,280 1,280
Exchange difference = 10,6349 = 10,639
As at 31 December 2019 ZR0,969 - 157 281,126
Financing cash flows B2, 114 et (323,266) (15,575) 533,273
DHvidends declaned - 634,078 - 634,078
Interest expense - - 15,79 15,791
Exchange difference (74,7 34) (4. 782) (20) (79,536)
As at 31 December 2020 1,078,149 3, 030 353 1,384,732

modes - The financing cash flows of bank Joans incloding new bank loans raised of BEME3, 0090, 166 000 | 2009 EMO56, 221, 000
aruf bank boans repaind of RMB2, 118,054,000 (20159 RMBIGS, 252, 0005 during the year.

31. Related Party Transactions
Oither than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during the year ended 31

December 2020, the Group entitled 1o receive interest income from a joint venture of RMB49,537,000
(20719 RMEB 1,924, 000).

Compensation of key managemen! personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel who are all Directors is disclosed in node 12,

32. Guarantee

As at 31 December 2020, the banking facilities of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary of
RMES, 956,394,000 (2019 RME1,256,732,000) were guarantesd by the Company, The Company is
able to contral the utilisation of the facilities,

33. Approval of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 (o 140 were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 February 2021,

1"“ Shrniten livestiment Huhfings Rey Aoea Dvvelagrsent Cosspany Linm sl
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30 2021

IFRS 15
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area
Development Company Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
"the Group") set out on pages 87 to 140, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated
financia position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("1FRSs") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Codge"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters - continued

Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share of
results of JVs - Amortisation of concession
intangible assets of the JVs

We identified the amortisation of concession
intangible assets of the JVs as akey audit
matter because significant judgements are
required in determining the estimation of
future traffic volume which has an impact on
the carrying value of the concession intangible
assets of the Vs as at year end and the
amortisation charges for the current and future
years. As set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, the two JVs of the Group
are engaged in the development, operation and
management of expressways under service
concessi on agreements with the right to collect
tolls for operating two expressways in
Guangdong Province of the People's Republic
of China (the "PRC"), one of which runs
between Shenzhen and Guangzhou and the
other one links Guangzhou, Zhongshan and
Zhuhai with the toll collection periods ranging
from 25 yearsto 30 years. The Group has
accounted for itsinterestsin these JVs using
the equity method of accounting.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our proceduresin relation to the
amortisation of concession intangible assets
of the JVsincluded:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policy adopted and whether
such accounting policy adopted reflects
the consumption pattern of the
concession intangibl e assets and
benchmarking with other companiesin
the same industry;

Undertaking a detailed analysis on the
significant judgements and estimates
used in management's estimation as
mentioned below; and

Comparing the expected traffic volume
estimated by the management in the
past against the actual traffic volumein
previous years and the historical trend
of traffic volume, and then obtaining
reasons for any variances, aswell as
evaluating the appropriateness, key
basis and assumptions, including the
annual growth rate of the traffic
volume, the change of the
transportation network of the region
and government policies relating to the
toll expressway operation in the PRC.
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Key Audit Matters - continued

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share of
results of JVs - Amortisation of concession
intangible assets of the JVs - continued

As set out in note 5(i) to the consolidated
financia statements, the interestsin JVsas at
31 December 2020 amounted to
RMB4,673,688,000 and the share of results of
JVsfor the year then ended 31 December 2020
amounted to RMB295,090,000. Included in
the share of results of JVs, there was an
amortisation of concession intangible assets of
the JV's shared by the Group amounting to
RMB625,596,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 which was calculated based on
units-of-usage basis, i.e. theratio of actual
traffic volume of the underlying toll
expressways for a particular period over the
total expected traffic volume of the underlying
toll expressways over the remaining
concession period of the service concession
agreements.

The total expected traffic volume over the
remaining concession period was estimated by
the management with reference to areport
prepared by athird party traffic consultant in a
prior year taken into consideration of various
factors such as the annual growth rate of the
traffic volume, the actual traffic volume in the
recent periods, the change of the transportation
network of the region and government policies
relating to the toll expressway operation in the
PRC.

236/241



EDINETOOOO

OO00oDoooooooobo0oDo0ooO00oLo00DOo00bDOo00DO000o0O00b0o0O0oOo(Ees933)

Key Audit Matters - continued

Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share of
results of JVs - Resurfacing obligations of the
JVs

We identified the resurfacing obligations of
the JVs as a key audit matter due to the
management's judgement involved in
determining the amount of provision by
discounted cash flow method which is based
on the number of major resurfacing works to
be undertaken over the concession periods
under the service concession agreements and
the expected costs to be incurred for each
event and then discounted to the present value
based on a pre-tax discount rate which could in
turn affect the carrying amount of interestsin
JVsasat 31 December 2020 and share of
results of JVsfor the year ended 31 December
2020 under the equity method of accounting
for the reason stated in the above key audit
matter.

Asdisclosed in note 5(ii) to the consolidated
financia statements, the JVs of the Group
have contractual obligations under the
contractual service concession arrangements to
maintain the toll expressways to a specified
level of serviceability over the respective
concession periods. These obligations to
maintain or restore the toll expressways,
except for upgrade services, are to be
recognised as resurfacing obligationsin the
financial statements of the JVs.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to evaluate the
resurfacing obligations of the JV'sincluded:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodology, key bases and
assumptions made by management in
estimating the obligations;

Assessing the reasonabl eness of the
expected costs of the resurfacing works
and the number of mgjor resurfacing
works to be undertaken over the
remaining concession period based on
the technical report prepared by the
engineering department of the JVs and
the actual costsincurred for resurfacing
works in recent periods;

Evaluating the appropriateness of the
discount rate and the timing for
discounting used by the management
with reference to the borrowing rate of
the Vs, and
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Key Audit Matters - continued

Key audit matter

Interests in joint ventures ("JVs") and share of
results of JVs - Resurfacing obligations of the
JVs - continued

Asfurther disclosed in note 5(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, the interests
in Vs asat 31 December 2020 amounted to
RMB4,673,688,000 and share of results of Vs
for the year then ended 31 December 2020
amounted to RMB295,090,000. Included in
the interestsin JVs, there was a provision of
resurfacing obligations of the JV's shared by
the Group amounting to RMB256,694,000 as
at 31 December 2020.

The expected costs for maintenance and
resurfacing and the timing of such event to
take place involve estimates made by the
management of the Group, which were taken
into consideration of the resurfacing plans of
the JVs, historical costsincurred for similar
activities and the latest quotations from the
service provider. These expected costs were
then discounted to the present value based on a
discount rate determined by the management
of the Group that reflected the time value of
the money and the risk specific to the
obligation.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Evaluating the projected traffic volume
projection based on procedures
performed in the key audit matter
related to the amortisation on
concession intangible assets of the JVs
as mentioned above which isused for
determining the amount of resurfacing
expense to be charged to profit or loss
in the respective reporting period.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financia statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materialy
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financia
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determineis
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you, as abody, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of thisreport. Reasonable assurance isahigh
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HK SAs will
always detect amaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aso:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'sinternal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements - continued

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financia statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is Hung Suk Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 February 2021
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